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GENERAL INFORMATION

Shenzhen International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is an investment holding company. During the year, the
Company, its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities
(together the “Group”) and associates were engaged in

the following principal activities:

° Logistics and related business
° Investment holding
° Manufacturing business

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Rooms
2206-2208, 22nd Floor, Greenfield Tower, Concordia Plaza,
No.1 Science Museum Road, Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

The Company has its primary listing on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of HK dollars (“HK$’000"), unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors
on 3 April 2006.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”).
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of buildings, available-
for-sale financial assets, derivative financial instruments
and investment properties, which are carried at fair
value.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed
in Note 4.

The adoption of new/revised HKFRS

In 2005, the Group adopted the new/revised HKFRS
below, which are relevant to its operations. The 2004
comparative figures have been restated as required,
in accordance with the relevant requirements.
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Presentation of Financial Statements
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Inventories
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Cash Flow Statements
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Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
S fEE 5T R RN & Bh A # R
Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government
Assistance
EXBBE o8
The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
fEER A
Borrowing Costs
B T R
Related Party Disclosures
e KRB IR
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
Bt N AR E
Interests in Associates
BELEER
Interests in Joint Ventures
TRIA: BRERE®W
Financial Instruments: Disclosures and Presentation
ST
Earnings per Share
h HRBT S
Interim Financial Reporting
BERIE
Impairment of Assets
B BRERIEEE
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
BIVEE
Intangible Assets
TRITE : BRKFE
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
BERVEEREHEERERE
Transition and Initial Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities
REME
Investment Property
ARRD B ETE 8 2 5
Share-based Payments
rEEH
Business Combinations
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2 FESTHEEX B
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

The adoption of new or revised Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) 1, 2, 7, 8, 10, 12, 14, 16, 18,
19, 20, 21, 283, 24, 27, 28, 33, 34 and 37 did not
result in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting
policies. In summary:

— HKAS 1 has affected the presentation of minority
interest, share of net after-tax results of associates
and other disclosures.

— HKASs 2, 7,8, 10, 12, 14, 16, 18, 19, 20, 23,
27, 28, 33, 34 and 37 had no material effect
on the Group’s policies.

— HKAS 21 had no material effect on the Group’s
policy. The functional currency of each of the
consolidated entities has been re-evaluated
based on the guidance to the revised standard.

— The Company’s functional currency and
presentation currency are Hong Kong Dollars
(“HK$”).

— HKAS 24 has affected the identification of related
parties and some other related-party disclosures.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

The adoption of revised HKAS 17 has resulted in a
change in the accounting policy relating to the
reclassification of leasehold land payments from
property, plant and equipment to operating leases.
The up-front prepayments made for the leasehold
land and land use rights are expensed in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease and when there is impairment, the
impairment is expensed in the income statement.
In prior years, the leasehold land and land use rights
were accounted for at fair value or cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment, if any.

The Group adopted the proportionate consolidation
under HKAS 31 “Interests in Joint Ventures” to account
for its interests in jointly controlled entities. In prior
years, the Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities
were accounted for by the equity method. The adoption
of the proportionate consolidation approach under
HKAS 31 represents a change in accounting policy.

The adoption of HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 has resulted
in a change in the accounting policy relating to the
classification of available-for-sale financial assets
and the measurement of convertible note and amount
due to a minority shareholder. Convertible note issued
is spilt into liability and equity components at initial
recognition by recognising the liability component
at its fair value and attributing to the equity component
the difference between the proceeds from the issue
and the fair value of the liability component. The
liability component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

The impact of applying the new standard on the
amount due to a minority shareholder was considered
as insignificant by the Directors of the Company to
the Group’s financial statements and no adjustment
has been made.

The adoption of revised HKAS 40 has resulted in a
change in the accounting policy of which the changes
in fair values are recorded in the income statement
as part of other income. In prior years, the increases
in fair value were credited to the investment properties
revaluation reserve. Decreases in fair value were
first set off against increases on earlier valuations
on a portfolio basis and thereafter expensed in the
income statement.

The adoption of HKFRS 2 has resulted in a change
in the accounting policy for share-based payments.
Until 31 December 2004, the provision of share options
to employees did not result in an expense in the
income statements. Effective on 1 January 2005,
the Group expenses the cost of share options in
the income statement.

The adoption of HKFRS 3, HKAS 36 and HKAS 38
results in a change in the accounting policies for
goodwill and negative goodwill.

Until 31 December 2004, goodwill was:

— amortised on a straight-line basis over a period

not exceeding 20 years; and

— assessed for an indication of impairment at each
balance sheet date.

3Rk 2005 Annual Report
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Until 31 December 2004, negative goodwill was:

— to the extent that related to expectations of
future losses and expenses that were identified
in the acquisition plan and that could be measured
reliably, but which were not included in the
identified liabilities as at the date of acquisition,
recognised as income in the consolidated income
statement; and

— to the extent that not related to identifiable
expected future losses and expenses as at the
date of acquisition, recognised in the consolidated
income statement over the remaining weight
average useful life of the non-monetary assets
acquired of not exceeding 20 years when it
did not exceed the fair values of the non-monetary
assets acquired. Any negative goodwill in excess
of the fair values of the acquired non-monetary
assets was recognised as income in the
consolidated income statement immediately.

In accordance with the provisions of HKFRS 3:

— The Group ceased amortisation of goodwill from
1 January 2005;

— Accumulated amortisation as at 1 January 2005
has been eliminated with a corresponding
decrease in the cost of goodwill;

— From the year ended 31 December 2005
onwards, goodwill is tested annually for
impairment, as well as when there is indication
of impairment; and

RYIBIRR 2% A IR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited 107 p )



illl

108 )

4= A

“r e B RS R R MY 5
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—EFTAFF=H=+—H 31 December 2005
(BR1FRIFERSN - BT & BB LB F T B EAL)

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2

TESTBER (8) 2

2.1 RBEEE (B)

- RZ-ZZEEHRF—A—H A&
BEMBREAERLER I
HERABN _-_ZTHE— A
—BHRBE -

AEEERBESEREERNNBER
EXHEFBRIELMBEZEE (W0
A o BRTIIFESN - NEEK
MOV A RS FEPER

— BRGENFI6H — &
BEREEXSTHBANY
X BEERRBHEBENNSG
ARAERAABEAR  EH
EMBEHEREZZER

— BRGEF21% — &
EHEHEREHEMRA(E
BRBIEREINELD — B
A CER

— BAGFLEREINR — Ut
HEATAFTEPER - K1k
AR ESLHEERSA
& AEBEH _TTNFL
RERITHESFRE N
RE SRR - RIERARIA
S EHERFE 245 [FEK
BEMETERE] - S5 EHE
A 552457 B & 51 % RI| 53955
METEZENABRE_ZZT
FFE—F—BHERARETE

— BAGFERFL05% — H
RAEE—HERAQIAER
B A AEEEFTET
b ER - A AERER
CEMEBHHBENES R
RZZBEZRAF—A—HZRKR
BRBPELAZE

AN B IR B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

Negative goodwill was derecognised at 1 January
2005 with a corresponding adjustment to the
retained earnings at 1 January 2005.

All changes in the accounting policies have been
made in accordance with the transitional provisions
in the respective standards. All standards adopted
by the Group require retrospective application other

HKAS 16 — the initial measurement of an item
of property, plant and equipment acquired in
an exchange of assets transaction is accounted
at fair value prospectively only to future
transactions;

HKAS 21 — prospective accounting for goodwill
and fair value adjustments as part of foreign
operations;

HKAS 39 - does not permit to recognise,
derecognise and measure financial assets and
liabilities in accordance with this standard on
a retrospective basis. The Group applied the
previous SSAP 24 “Accounting for investments
in securities” to investments in securities and
also to hedge relationships for the 2004
comparative information. The adjustments
required for the accounting differences between
SSAP 24 and HKAS 39 are determined and
recognised at 1 January 2005;

HKAS 40 - since the Group has adopted the
fair value model, there is no requirement for
the Group to restate the comparative information.
All adjustments were made to the retained
earnings at 1 January 2005, including the
reclassification of any amount held in revaluation
reserve for investment property;

3Rk 2005 Annual Report
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ARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
IES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

HKAS — Int 15 — does not require the recognition
of incentives for leases beginning before 1
January 2005;

HKFRS 2 — only retrospective application for
all equity instruments granted after 7 November
2002 and not vested at 1 January 2005; and

HKFRS 3 — prospectively after 1 January 2005.

KR iE
() MBI BB ST ELE ()  The adoption of revised HKAS 17 resulted in:
179 E 2
2005 2004

ME - BE K Decrease in property,

B plant and equipment 146,447 120,886
HE T & Increase in leasehold land and

o Hb {5 3 A 1 AN land use rights 146,447 120,886

B Ee =t ERE1795E
HEMBENEDAAY
%'ﬁ%ﬁﬁélﬂﬁgﬁ
EAVE
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The adoption of HKAS 17 only affected the
balances on classification. There was no
significant change to the accumulated
depreciation.
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2 FEEHBE#E) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

21 RREE (B) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(i) RABFTEGALEREIIRE (i)  The adoption of HKAS 31 resulted in:
B
2005 2004
HEEHIERR QG  Decrease in interests in
=R jointly controlled entities 666,519 47,338
HIERENEEL I Increase in other non-current
assets 684,431 24,414
B E EE 0 Increase in current assets 44,645 27,080
mEN B B AN Increase in current liabilities 62,557 4,156
JE{G HERIEHIEE  Decrease in share of profits of
NAEIAMR L jointly controlled entities 23,587 7,107
WA N Increase in income 75,159 21,563
B 38 10 Increase in expenses 51,572 14,456

BRANE B BRI B 315 Y
REBHTELYE -

(i) RAEBFBWELEREINR
EYR-_FETHRE-A—HBZ
B & E I mE K
138,291,0007T X 48 F& 12 A1
—ETETRF—-HA—RAZRE
B #7451 138,291,0007T °
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(i)

There was no impact on retained earnings from
the adoption of HKAS 31.

The adoption of HKFRS 3 resulted in an increase
in intangible assets at 1 January 2005 by
HK$138,291,000 and a corresponding increase
in retained earnings at 1 January 2005 by
HK$138,291,000.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(iv)  The adoption of HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 resulted
in a decrease in retained earnings at 1 January
2005 by HK$49,195,000 and an increase in
other reserves at 1 January 2005 by
HK$56,405,000. The details of the adjustments
to the balance sheet at 31 December 2005
and income statement for the year ended 31
December 2005 are as follows:

2005

AftEE Decrease in available-for-sale financial assets 47,346

TEREERD
AR ZEER LD Decrease in convertible note 18,965
H b &G — Increase in other reserves —

CIE:Y &2l equity component of convertible note

=B 56,405
HafEERD — Decrease in other reserves —

BERAHEEZ revaluation on available-for-sale

TREE financial assets 24,147
REB AR D Decrease in retained earnings 60,639
B 7 B A48 0 Increase in finance costs 11,444
BIRENEFF L  Decrease in basic earnings per share

(L) (HK cent) 0.10
FR#EERFIR L Decrease in diluted earnings per share

(E'AL) (HK cent) 0.09

AEBNBE QAR RIIER
N A% 0 A BR A &) B R AT
Rl AR B S RS R E
BEBMAE ZEABEY
REBRBENT 2HEER
REBHBAR_ZEZTNF—A
—BRZZETNF+ A=
+ — B 5 8RB
15,734,000 & /8 ¥
20,074,0007T °
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(v) The retrospective adjustments relating to the
adoption of new/revised HKFRS by an associate,
Shenzhen Expressway Company Limited, have
resulted in a decrease in interests in associates
and retained earnings of the Group by
HK$15,734,000 at 1 January 2004 and
HK$20,074,000 at 31 December 2004.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

AN B IR B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited

Basis of preparation (continued)
Standards, interpretations and amendments to
published standards that are not yet effective

Certain new standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards which have been
published are mandatory for the Group’s accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2006 or
later periods but which the Group has not early
adopted, as follows:

— HKAS 19 (Amendment) Employee Benefits

— HKAS 39 (Amendment) Cash Flow Hedge
Accounting of Forecast Intragroup Transactions

— HKAS 39 (Amendment) The Fair Value Option

— HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4 (Amendment) Financial
Guarantee Contracts

— HKFRS 1 (Amendment) First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
HKFRS 6 (Amendment) Exploration for and
Evaluation of Mineral Resources

— HKFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral
Resources

— HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures,
and a complementary Amendment to HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements — Capital
Disclosures
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(BRFFRIEERS)N - BT & BB LB For B &)

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to
published standards that are not yet effective
(continued)

2.2

HKFRS - Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease

HKFRS - Int 5 Rights to Interests arising from
Decommissioning, Restoration and
Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

HK(IFRIC) — Int 6 Liabilities arising from
Participating in a Specific Market — Waste
Electrical and Electronic Equipment

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact
of these new standards, amendments and
interpretations and is not yet in a position to state
the potential impact all these new standards,
amendments and interpretations would have on its
results of operations and financial position.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company, all its subsidiaries
and jointly controlled entities made up to 31 December.

(@)

BRI B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies, generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)
(@) Subsidiaries (continued)

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that

control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used
to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries
by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs
directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of
any minority interest. The excess of the cost
of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition
is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in the income statement

(see Note 2.10).

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated but considered an impairment
indicator of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted by the Company on the basis

of dividend received and receivable.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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(b)

BRI B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and are initially recognised
at cost. The Group’s investment in associates
includes goodwill (net of any accumulated
impairment loss) identified on acquisition (see
Note 2.10).

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in
the income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in reserves is recognised
in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interests in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

Associates (continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments
in associates are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses. The results of associates
are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividend received and receivable.

Jointly controlled entities

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities
are accounted for by proportionate consolidation.
The Group combines its share of the jointly
controlled entities’ individual income and
expenses, assets and liabilities and cash flows
on a line-by-line basis with similar items in the
Group’s financial statements. The Group
recognises the portion of gains or losses on
the sale of assets by the Group to the jointly
controlled entity that it is attributable to the
other venturers. The Group does not recognise
its share of profits or losses from the jointly
controlled entity that results from the Group’s
purchase of assets from the jointly controlled
entity until it resells the assets to an independent
party. However, a loss on the transaction is
recognised immediately if the loss provides
evidence of a reduction in the net realisable
value of current assets, or an impairment loss.

In the Company’s balance sheet, interests in
jointly controlled entities are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses. The results of
jointly controlled entities are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable.
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—EFFEAFF+=H=+—H 31 December 2005
(BRFFRIEERS)N - BT & BB LB For B &)

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and
operations engaged in providing products or services
that are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of other business segments. A geographical
segment is engaged in providing products or services
within a particular economic environment that are
subject to risks and returns that are different from
those of segments operating in other economic
environments.

2.4

Foreign currency translation

(@)

BRI B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The Company’s functional
currency and presentation currency are HK$.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement.

117p)p



118»p

.

=]

=R E R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—EFTAFF=H=+—H 31 December 2005
(BR1FRIFERSN - BT & BB LB F T B EAL)

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

TESTBER (8) 2

2

2

2.

4 HNEBRE (B)

(c) HERA]
Dee K EIREE TR
FIAESREER (EFRARMK
BIREE) B FE MR
WMRTEBRERIIEREY

(i BREB/HWEEABE
WAERBEE RRE
EEEEAHKTER
B

(il H1H» Eﬁéi’%qwz)\ﬂﬁ
FIE B IR B RE B F
HEXRFTE (E%éEJtt/IE
EIW AKX S HHE
ERRFAZENEGREY
g ERBAT KX
HEERR S HBMNE
R|E) 5 Rk

(i) FIEARKEENER =
MR AESZNE L
KT B PR °

5 ¥ - BMERREE
BFTEBENRAE - EFIRIE
SN BN EEMTEHRETHEE
BRARBEREENITENR -
EHEEBNTRNRFFINEREE
WEEEEEEEE  mFRAUE
NIZEEMNEHTRE - fTEHM
M - BB &R IR AR
WEMBEEBEEIE - FELKR
PBREKEZEEEEEMGNHA
§ o

AN B IR B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

()  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of
equity.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly offices. Buildings are shown
at fair value, based on periodic valuations by external
independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation.
Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation
is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of
the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued
amount of the asset. All other property, plant and
equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation
and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
expensed in the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation
of buildings are credited to other reserves in
shareholders’ equity. Decreases that offset previous
increases of the same asset are charged against
other reserves directly in equity; all other decreases
are expensed in the income statement. Each year
the difference between depreciation based on the
revalued carrying amount of the asset expensed in
the income statement and depreciation based on
the asset’s original cost is transferred from other
reserves to retained earnings.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
cost or revalued amounts to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

- #BF 15Z50F IR FIRH A F B (AR B RLE)
Buildings 15-50 years or over the terms of the unexpired leases,
whichever is shorter
— MHEMEREE AFHRFIRBHNFIH UREERE)
Leasehold 4 years or over the terms of the unexpired leases,
improvements whichever is shorter
- RA -KE RBERAE 3E8F

Furniture, fixtures, equipment
and motor vehicles

3-8 years
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount
(Note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These
are included in the income statement.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents the direct costs
of construction incurred plus interest capitalised up
to the date of completion of the construction of
property, plant and equipment less any impairment
losses. No provision for depreciation is made on
construction in progress until such time the relevant
assets are completed and put into use. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Property under development

Property under development is stated at lower of
cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less the estimated costs to completion
and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cost comprises acquisition cost, construction cost
and other costs directly attributable to the development
of the property.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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Property that is held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the entities within the consolidated Group,
is classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried
at fair value. Fair value is based on active market
prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in
the nature, location or condition of the specific asset.
If this information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices
on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. These valuations are performed in
accordance with the guidance issued by the
international Valuation Standards Committee annually
by external valuers. Investment property that is being
redeveloped for continuing use as investment property,
or for which the market has become less active,
continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among
other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases
in the light of current market conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any
cash outflows that could be expected in respect of
the property. Some of those outflows are recognised
as a liability, including finance lease liabilities in respect
of land classified as investment property; others,
including contingent rent payments, are not recognised
in the financial statements.

RYIBIRR 2% A IR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited 121 p )



illl

122)pp

“r e B RS R R MY 5
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—EFTAFF=H=+—H 31 December 2005
(BR1FRIFERSN - BT & BB LB F T B EAL)

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 FESTHEEX B

2.8

AN B IR B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited

REWE (B)

EEX B RAEEZERABY
RIERGERN A Al RE R AR &
a2 B MR ANRER] SEaT &
B It AEEENREES -
FTEEMEERRERAEESE
MR HIE AR E SR -

AREBEEDERERPER -

EREMEERETIER %
EFBERYE  BENRE -
HREHFOBBHNRAEE -
REHENMEEREKA - 3B
s EEREARBIERE
MENYE  WOBEB/DE - K
FERREABKAINE  BEER
HRERTHA/L  EREHD
BRREMELERRRENE
FCRR ©

RIEEFBEHERFE 165 59
X BEEREBOXEEBRREE
REREMRAREYE - %R
AREREHNEEELEARE
ENTRAEBEERaTRR/Y
X -BELRBHOERS - AW -
HERRBEREGAERRERS
B ZBENIERRER -

REBBAMBRELERNELHR - #£F
FHEMTERNRENEER
EHENIERBEENDRR

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Investment properties (continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income
statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied,
it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment,
and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes
its cost for accounting purposes. Property that is
being constructed or developed for future use as
investment property is classified as property, plant
and equipment and stated at cost until construction
or development is complete, at which time it is
reclassified and subsequently accounted for as
investment property.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed,
any difference resulting between the carrying amount
and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer
is recognised in equity as a revaluation of property,
plant and equipment under HKAS 16. However, if
a fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss,
the gain is recognised in the income statement.

Investment property held for sale without
redevelopment is classified within non-current assets
held for sale, under HKFRS 5.
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(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Leasehold land and land use rights
Leasehold land and land use rights are up-front
payments to acquire long-term interests in the usage
of land. They are stated at cost and charged to the
income statement over the remaining period of the
lease on a straight-line basis, net off any impairment
losses.

2.10Intangible assets

(a)

BRI B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of
an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s
share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired
subsidiary/associate/jointly controlled entity at
the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions
of subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities is
included in “intangible assets”. Goodwill on
acquisitions of associates is included in “interests
in associates”. Separately recognised goodwill
is tested annually for impairment and carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.
Gains and losses on the disposals of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwill relating
to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10Intangible assets (continued)

(b) Toll road operating right
Toll road operating right is capitalised based
on the costs incurred to acquire the right and
is amortised using the straight-line method over
the remaining operating period of 17 years.

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation, which are at least tested annually
for impairment and are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.
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(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12Investments

From 1 January 2004 to 31 December 2004

The Group classified its investments in securities,
other than subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities, as investment securities and other
investments.

(@) Investment securities
Investment securities, including listed and unlisted
equity securities, intended to be held for a
continuing strategic long-term purpose, are
stated at cost less impairment losses, on an
individual basis.

(b) Other investments
Other investments are stated at fair values on
an individual investment basis. The gains or
losses arising from changes in their respective
fair value are credited or charged to income
statement for the period in which they arise.

From 1 January 2005 onwards:

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity, and available-for-
sale. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation
at every reporting date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12Investments (continued)

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial
assets held for trading, and those designated
at fair value through profit or loss at inception.
A financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term or if so designated by
management. Derivative instruments are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets if they are either
held for trading or are expected to be realised
within 12 months of the balance sheet date.
During the year, the Group did not hold any

investments in this category.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for those
with maturities greater than 12 months after
the balance sheet date which are classified as
non-current assets. Loans and receivables are
classified as “trade and other receivables” in

the balance sheet (Note 2.13).
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(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12Investments (continued)

(©)

BRI B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited

Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities that the Group’s
management has the positive intention and ability
to hold to maturity. If the Group were to sell
other than an insignificant amount of held-to-
maturity financial assets, the whole category
would be tainted and reclassified as available-
for-sale. Held-to-maturity financial assets are
included in non-current assets, except for those
with maturities less than 12 months from the
balance sheet date, which are classified as current
assets. During the year, the Group did not hold
any investments in this category.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless management intends to dispose
of the investment within 12 months of the balance
sheet date.

127 p)p



illl

128 )

=R E R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—EFTAFF=H=+—H 31 December 2005
(BR1FRIFERSN - BT & BB LB F T B EAL)

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 FESTHEEX B

2.12%E (48)

RENBARMEER 5 B#ER
—RZAEAEEAEB AL
EZEEZR - eRMEEVHRS
BARBERER - HRALFER
REBEEBERLENME SR
BE HUWBEIASHNTEHEHR
RPUA - BARBEEBRS
RRENEMEE  EVHN
BERR XZUAERIZRT
BRASER ERKEWRIESE
MENENEEIHRXKEEHE
& OMAKRECDKHEEENRA
RO R ERE RS - AR
RIEER - AL ECERMEE
(M5 R B A R EE B
A ST EMNIFE L MRERE) MR
ArRBEEBEDLERNERE
EHEREBRAABEIE -BEFRK
FEWRIA K 156 B HI B R & A
BN BORRE HR AR o

[(BARBEEBEBSLENEE

BEINAAREEIMEENRES
(BREMNERREWA) » EEE
HIEOEa R IER I EMikaE—

R HIUR -

AN B IR B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12Investments (continued)

Regular purchases and sales of investments are
recognised on trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value and transaction costs are
expensed in the income statement. Investments are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-
sale financial assets (except for unlisted equity
investments that do not have quoted price in active
market or whose fair value cannot be reliably measured)
and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables and held-to-maturity investments
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the “financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss” category, including interest and dividend
income, are presented in the income statement within
“other gains — net” in the period in which they arise.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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When securities classified as available-for-sale at
fair value are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair
value adjustments recognised in equity are included
in the income statement as “gains and losses from
investment securities”. Interest on available-for-sale
securities calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in the income statement. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in the income statement when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based
on current bid prices. If the market for an equity
investment is not active or its fair value cannot be
reliably measured, the Group states it at cost less
impairment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12Investments (continued)

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In
the case of equity securities classified as available-
for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the security below its cost is considered
an indicator that the securities are impaired. If any
such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in the income statement
—is removed from equity and recognised in the income
statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the income statement. Impairment testing
of trade receivables is described in Note 2.13.

2.13Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade
and other receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of receivables. The amount of the provision
is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount
of the provision is recognised in the income statement
within “administrative expenses”.
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(BR1F5IE RSN - BT 2 BB LB F T BEL)
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less.

2.15Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any Group company purchases the Company’s
equity share capital, the consideration paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs (net of
income taxes), is deducted from equity attributable
to the Company’s equity holders until the shares
are cancelled, reissued or disposed of.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset
or financial liability, including fees and commissions
paid to agents, advisors, brokers and dealers, levies
by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges,
and transfer taxes and duties. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Borrowings (continued)

The fair value of the liability portion of a convertible
note is determined using a market interest rate for
an equivalent non-convertible note. This amount is
recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis
until extinguished on conversion or maturity of the
bonds. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated
to the conversion option. This is recognised and
included in shareholders’ equity, net of income tax
effects.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance
sheet date.

2.17 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period
that is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are
expensed when incurred.

2.18 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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2 TEGFHBEE@#E) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is within the control of the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

2.19Employee benefits

(@) Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefits scheme, Mandatory Provident
Fund (the “MPF Scheme”), under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Ordinance in Hong Kong for
all Hong Kong employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Besides, the
Group participates in defined contribution
retirement schemes organised by the local
government authorities in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”). Apart from these, the
Group has no legal or constructive obligations
for further payments.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate scheme. Contributions payable
or paid by the Group and employees are
calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic
salaries. The amounts of employee benefit
expenses charged to the income statement
represent the contribution payable or paid by
the Group to the scheme.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

Share-based compensation

The Company operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed over
the vesting period is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions
(for example, profitability and sales growth
targets). Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to become exercisable.
At each balance sheet date, the entity revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates,
if any, in the income statement with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to
share capital (nominal value) and share premium
when the options are exercised.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus
payments are recognised as liabilities when the
Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans
are expected to be settled within the next 12
months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.
The amounts paid and payable are recognised
as employee benefit expense.
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(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of consideration
received or receivable for services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown,
net of rebates and discounts and after eliminating
sales within the Group. Revenue is recognised as
follows:

(a)

BRI B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited

Sales of services
Sales of services are recognised when services
are rendered.

Toll revenue
Toll revenue from operation of toll roads is
recognised on a receipt basis.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method. When a receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future
cash flows discounted at original effective interest
rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income. Interest income
on impaired loans is recognised using the original
effective rate.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right
to receive payment is established.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Operating lease

(@ When a group company is the lessee
Leases where a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.

(b)  When a group company is the lessor
Assets leased out under operating leases are
included in investment properties in the balance
sheet. Rental income (net of any incentives given
to lessees) is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

2.22 Deferred income — government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the income statement over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred government grants and
are recognised in the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.23 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk and fair
value interest rate risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and
cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk
management seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the financial performance of the Group.
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to
hedge certain risk exposure.

BRI B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited

Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with
most of the transactions settled in Renminbi
(“RMB”). It did not have significant exposure
to foreign exchange risk. Nevertheless, the
exchange rate of RMB to foreign currencies is
subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations
of credit risk. The Group has policies in place
to ensure that sales of services are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.
Derivative counter-parties and cash transactions
are limited to high credit quality financial
institutions.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group
aims to maintain flexibility in funding by arranging
banking facilities and other external financing.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(d)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets, the Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk.

The Group manages its cash flow interest rate
risk by using floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps.
Such interest rate swaps have the economic
effect of converting borrowings from floating
rates to fixed rates. Generally, the Group raises
borrowings at floating rates and swaps them
into fixed rates that are lower than those available
if the Group borrowed at fixed rates directly.
Under the interest rate swaps, the Group agrees
with other parties to exchange, at specified
intervals (mainly half-yearly), the difference
between fixed contract rates and floating rate
interest amounts calculated by reference to the
agreed notional principal amounts.
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3 HMEBEERERER &) 3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
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instruments and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured at their fair value. The
method of recognising the resulting gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated
as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of
the item being hedged. The Group designates certain
derivatives as either: (1) hedges of the fair value of
recognised assets or liabilities or a firm commitment
(fair value hedges); (2) hedges of a particular risk
associated with a recognised asset or liability or a
highly probable forecast transactions (cash flow
hedges); or (3) hedges of net investments in foreign
operations (net investment hedges).

The Group documents at the inception of the
transaction the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also documents
its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an
ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are
used in hedging transactions are highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of
hedged items. The fair value of the derivative instrument
used for hedging purpose is disclosed in Note 16.

(@) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualify as fair value hedges
are recorded in the income statement, together
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged
asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged
risk. During the year, the Group did not have
fair value hedging activities.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Accounting for

derivative financial

instruments and hedging activities (continued)

(b)

AN B IR B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value
of derivatives that are designated and qualify
as cash flow hedges are recognised in equity.
The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion
is recognised immediately in the income
statement within “other gains — net”.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled
in the income statement in the periods when
the hedged item will affect profit or loss (for
instance when the forecast sale that is hedged
takes place). The gain or loss relating to the
effective portion of interest rate swaps hedging
variable rate borrowings is recognised in the
income statement within “finance costs”.
However, when the forecast transaction that
is hedged results in the recognition of a non-
financial asset (for example, inventory) or a liability,
the gains and losses previously deferred in equity
are transferred from equity and included in the
initial measurement of the cost of the asset or
liability.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold,
or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria
for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or
loss existing in equity at that time remains in
equity and is recognised when the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in the income
statement. When a forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss that was reported in equity is immediately
transferred to the income statement.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Accounting for

derivative financial

instruments and hedging activities (continued)

(©)

BRI B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited

Net investment hedge

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations
are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges.
Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument
relating to the effective portion of the hedge is
recognised in equity; the gain or loss relating
to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the income statement. During
the year, the Group did not have net investment
hedging activities.

Gains and losses accumulated in equity are
included in the income statement when the
foreign operation is disposed of.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting

Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instruments that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are recognised immediately in the
income statement.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as trading and available-for-sale
securities) is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods
and makes assumptions that are based on market
conditions existing at each balance sheet date. Quoted
market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
are used for long-term debt. Other techniques, such
as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to
determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments. The fair value of interest rate swaps is
calculated as the present value of the estimated
future cash flows.

The nominal value less impairment provisions of trade
and other receivables and the nominal value of trade
and other payables are assumed to approximate
their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities
for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting
the future contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for similar
financial instruments.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

Estimate of fair value of acquired assets and liabilities
from the acquisition of a jointly controlled entity

During the year, the Group acquired 45% share interest
in Jade Emperor Limited (“JEL”) at a cash consideration
of HK$534,790,000. Details of the acquisitions are set
out in Note 40. In accordance with HKFRS 3, the acquired
identifiable assets and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed should be measured at fair value on the acquisition
date in order to determine the difference between the
cost of acquisition and the fair value of the Group’s share
of net assets acquired which should be recognised as
goodwill on the balance sheet or recognised in the income
statement.

BRI B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

In the absence of an active market for the acquisition
undertaken by the Group, and in order to determine the
fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities in the acquisition,
the directors have adopted the following critical judgement
and estimates:

— An enterprise fair value (“Enterprise Fair Value”) of
JEL was ascertained by an independent professional
valuer close to the acquisition date based on the
discounted projected cash flow model.

— The only major intangible asset to be identified in
the acquisition which is subject to fair value adjustment
is determined as the toll road operating right granted
by the relevant local government authorities to the
wholly owned subsidiary of JEL, Hubei Magerk
Expressway Management Private Limited.

As a result of the above, the directors of the Company
have arrived at an amount of HK$30,987,000 (Note 40),
being the excess of fair value of the net assets acquired
from JEL over the cost of acquisition, which has been
included in the income statement for the year ended 31
December 2005 as part of “other gains — net”.

Should the Enterprise Fair Value of JEL differ by 5% from

directors’ estimates, the other gains would be increased
or decreased by HK$25,000,000.
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5 ZSHEHR 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION
FERERRX -EBDE Primary reporting format - business segments
RZZFEZTRF+_A=+—08  x&E As at 31 December 2005, the Group and its associates
NEtE NRMEETEES B=lXB D are organised into three main business segments:
g -
(1) YrREkBEEER: (1) Logistics and related business;
(2) WEER & (2) Investment holding; and
(3) HEXEH (3) Manufacturing business
BE-ZETAF+-A=1T—-HLEE Year ended 31 December 2005
MRRERER
Logistics REER REXR
and related Investment Manufacturing B
business holding business Total?
E Turnover
-r5%E - The Group 316,959 — — 316,959
—EEBE AR - Share of associates 297,116 — 621,532 918,648
614,075 — 621,532 1,235,607
RERF Operating profit 106,374 29,452 — 135,826
KA Finance costs (25,780)
R & DA &R Share of profit of associates 162,319 — 91,851 254,170
BR 3¢ Al & 7 Profit before income tax 364,216
WA Income tax expense (4,244)
EEHA Profit for the year 359,972
BE Assets 1,618,919 204,816 — 1,823,735
kNG Associates 1,931,826 — 712,933 2,644,759
BEE Total assets 3,550,745 204,816 712,933 4,468,494
&% Liabilities (751,152) (545,496) —  (1,296,648)
HittpHEE Other segment items
BARHX Capital expenditure 750,133 123 — 750,256
e Depreciation 13,104 1,532 — 14,636
5 Amortisation 19,721 646 — 20,367
TR ERE Impairment of receivables 2,966 — — 2,966
eI B i 3H 2 3B R Recovery of bad debts written off - (20,036) - (20,036)
AtHEZSREE  Impairment of available-for-sale
B R financial assets 5,234 — — 5,234
METHRTH Reversal of impairment of
AR EREE leasehold land and
L& land use rights (27,540) - - (27,540)
# [tz # For reference only
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5 oEER (&) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
FERERRX XKD (E) Primary reporting format - business segments
(continued)
BE-ZZNF+-A=1+—HLEFE Year ended 31 December 2004
NEREBES
Logistics NERE REER HEEK
and related Property  Investment Manufacturing ag
business investment* holding business Total*
BEH Turnover
-K&E - The Group 235,205 18,929 - — 254,134
- EGBEDRABH* - Share of associates’ 169,779 — — 446,744 616,523
404,984 18,929 — 446,744 870,657
KERA Operating profit 118,460 42,393 (38,325) — 122,528
Bt i‘kﬁi$ Finance costs (2,495)
JE R B & 12 Bl & A Share of profit of associates 122,826 — - 79,327 202,153
Bt A & A Profit before income tax 322,186
izl Income tax expense (7,746)
FEAR Profit for the year 314,440
BE Assets 625,720 11,000 463,203 — 1,099,923
BE N Associates 1,771,991 - — 548,269 2,320,260
BEE Total assets 2,397,711 11,000 463,203 548,269 3,420,183
8 Liabilities (246,970) — (457,415) — (704,385)
HitnHIEE Other segment items
EARX Capital expenditure 176,300 — 716 — 177,016
e Depreciation 11,060 — 2,174 — 13,234
HELHR Amortisation of
TiE RS S leasehold land and
land use rights 6,697 — 646 — 7,343
BERAHELH Amortisation of goodwill and
negative goodwill (35,792) — — — (35,792)
BFERER Revaluation deficits
on buildings BRI — — — 3913

# EH2E
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For reference only
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Primary reporting format - business segments
(continued)

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, leasehold land and
land use rights, construction in progress, intangible assets,
interests in associates, available-for-sale financial assets,
property under development, trade and other receivables
and operating cash.

Segment liabilities comprise borrowings, convertible note,
taxation and operating liabilities.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant
and equipment, investment properties, leasehold land
and land use rights, construction in progress and intangible
assets, including additions resulting from acquisition of
a jointly controlled entity (Notes 6, 7, 8, 9 and 10).

* The major assets of the property investment segment of the Group
had been disposed of in 2004. The remainder of the segment is
not qualified as a reporting segment and therefore its information
has been combined into the logistics and related business segment
in 2005.

BRI B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited
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5 HIER (&) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
RERELN —hE D 3P Secondary reporting format - geographical
segments
REEN=FAXZBIHEEERFEA The Group’s three business segments operate in Hong
AR o Kong and the PRC.
2005 2004
HE Sales
A Hong Kong — —
AR B A 3B The PRC 316,959 254,134
316,959 254,134
BMEE Total assets
BB Hong Kong 91,982 152,855
fh B A b The PRC 4,376,512 3,267,328
4,468,494 3,420,183
BARARX Capital expenditures
& Hong Kong 123 716
Hh B A The PRC 750,133 176,300
750,256 177,016
EEERER DM Analysis of turnover by category
2005 2004
Wi AR 75 U 2= Revenue from logistic services 234,210 205,151
g YN I Revenue from toll road 49,976 —
g B A Dividend income 32,773 30,054
Ml A Rental income — 18,929
316,959 254,134
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—EFFEAFF+=H=+—H 31 December 2005
(BRFFRIEERS)N - BT & BB LB For B &)

Wk BERRE-EE

ir e 15 SRR P At

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP

BENEEE

#a-
EERRE
Jat:: Furniture,

#F  Leasehold Motor fixtures and At
Buildings improvements vehicles  equipment Total
R=ZZME-A-H  At1 January 2004
KA E Cost or valuation 92,799 5,574 14,423 32,472 145,268
ZE Accumulated depreciation (3,619) (3,457) (6,371) (12,497) (25,944)
REFE et book amount 89,180 2,117 8,052 19,975 119,324
HEZ-ZEME Year ended 31 December 2004
+:H§+—H¢$E
ﬁ‘%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ}%ﬁ Opening net book amount 89,180 2,117 8,052 19,975 119,324
BELREHNERED Additional acquisition of interst in a
e N jointly control entity to become
a subsidiary 20,035 1,157 533 4,646 26,371
R Additions 365 24 1,530 6,612 8,531
ERIREA (B/:9)  Transfer from construction
in progress (Note 9) 114,270 — — 519 114,789
e Disposals (707) — (1,006) (450) (2,163)
BEE (Ka30) Revaluation deficits (Note 30) (3,315) — — — (3,315)
e Depreciation (5,266) (927) (2,203) (4,838) (13,234)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 214,562 2,371 6,906 26,464 250,303
RZZENE At 31 December 2004
t=A=t-H
KA E Cost or valuation 224,300 6,755 15,611 44,286 290,952
ZHHE Accumulated depreciation (9,738) (4,384) (8,705) (17,822) (40,649)
REFE Net book amount 214,562 2,371 6,906 26,464 250,303
HE-ZELfF Year ended 31 December 2005
t-A=t-HLEE
ENREFE Opening net book amount 214,562 2,371 6,906 26,464 250,303
KELREHEE Acquisition of a jointly
NElER (at40) controlled entity (Note 40) 1,123 — 276 6,819 8,218
R Additions 10,490 7 1,763 5173 17,433
ERIREA (B/:#9)  Transfer from construction
in progress (Note 9) 41,021 — — 308 41,329
e (Bfa237) Disposals (Note 37) — — (1,655) (169) (1,824)
ERES Exchange difference 4,082 35 130 515 4,762
e Depreciation (5,783) (770) (2,247) (5,836) (14,636)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 265,495 1,643 5,173 33,274 305,585
RZZZLE At 31 December 2005
t=A=t-H
KA E Cost or valuation 281,525 6,839 12,915 59,264 360,543
RiE Accumulated depreciation (16,030) (5,196) (7,742) (25,990) (54,958)
REFE Net book amount 265,495 1,643 5173 33,274 305,585
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—EFTAFF=H=+—H 31 December 2005
(BR1FRIFERSN - BT & BB LB F T B EAL)

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

6 MX BEEKRE-&£E @) 6

FEEFHEES 850,000 (ZZTZ Y
4 E¥A, 890,000m) BB
8,786,000 (T M4 : Bk
8,344,0007T) D RIESHER AR EE
BRPXIE -

EETFIRFELKAREEL R - GELHE
B

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP
(continued)

Depreciation of HK$5,850,000 (2004: HK$4,890,000) and
HK$8,786,000 (2004: HK$8,344,000) has been expensed
in cost of sales and administrative expenses respectively.

If buildings were stated on the historical cost basis, the
amounts would be as follows:

2005 2004
| Cost 295,233 238,040
25 E Accumulated depreciation (21,666) (15,632)
BREFE Net book amount 273,567 222 408

R-ZEZRE+_A=+—0 tat&
ERNRARGEINET :

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31 December
2005 of the above assets is as follows:

Ha-

RENRE

RENELEE 58 Furniture,
BF  Leasehold Motor fixtures and At
Buildings improvements vehicles  equipment Total
BRA At cost — 6,839 12,915 59,264 79,018
HIEE At valuation 281,525 - - - 281,525
281,525 6,839 12,915 59,264 360,543

W_FEmEF=A=+—8 L]
BEORAREEHTHT -

=
pis

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31 December
2004 of the above assets is as follows:

HE -

RENRE

HENEEL 58 Furniture,
BF  Leasehold Motor fixtures and I
Buildings improvements vehicles  equipment Total
BRA At cost — 6,755 15,611 44,286 66,652
&itME At valuation 224,300 — — — 224,300
224,300 6,755 15,611 44,286 290,952

AN B IR B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited
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ZZFERF+=A=+—H 31 December 2005
(BR1F5IE RSN - BT 2 BB LB F T BEL)
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

7 REYX-£EH 7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - GROUP
2005 2004
F1) Beginning of the year 11,000 229,000
NE Additions 3,270 —
EREIREA (fiF9) Transfer from construction
in progress (Note 9) 2,160 —
A BENRE (Fi329) Fair value gains (Note 29) 2,498 —
EHERE Exchange differences 302 —
e Disposals — (218,000)
F& End of the year 19,230 11,000
REYEE _TTRF+_-_A=1+—H The investment properties were revalued at 31 December
BT XA AR EERMKFTTER 2005 by independent, professionally qualified valuers,
BAERAAIER - RHL Appraisal Ltd..
REBEREMENESIREREFE The Group’s interests in investment properties at their
DT net book values are analysed as follows:
2005 2004
R BBAIMNEE Outside Hong Kong, held on:
SOFHI FMEE Leases of over 50 years 19,230 11,000
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—EFTAFF=H=+—H 31 December 2005
(BR1FRIFERSN - BT & BB LB F T B EAL)

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

8 MHEITHERIHFERAE-£EH 8 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS -
GROUP
AEEEHEL R T RAENER The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use
BEMNEERER  RHERIFEI N rights represent prepaid operating lease payments and
T their net book values are analysed as follows:
2005 2004
UREE : In Hong Kong, held on:
10F 250F BiMHEE Leases of between 10 to 50 years 38,987 20,549
SOFHIN EMEE Leases of over 50 years 3,116 1,968
42,103 22,517
IR BB LA R - Outside Hong Kong, held on:
10FEZ50F B & Leases of between 10 to 50 years 14,958 17,240
S0FHIA EMEE Leases of over 50 years 9,376 16,233
REIBAE B AR E Leases with unspecified periods* 79,337 64,896
103,671 98,369
145,774 120,886
* R-FERFF+_A=1—H ZEHELH * At 31 December 2005, the legal procedures for obtaining certificates
B A b 4 B 2 (A LA EE A o of these land use rights are not yet completed.
2005 2004
FHREFE Opening net book amount 120,886 117,282
AR Additions — 355
WERE 2 ERE (K229) Reversal of impairment (Note 29) 27,540 —
18 3% H [ 5 %‘Jﬁﬁi’“ Additional acquisition of interest
BnEMBA in a jointly control entity to
become a subsidiary — 10,880
B Amortisation (4,671) (7,343)
& Disposals — (288)
ERER Exchange differences 2,019 —
FIREREFE Closing net book amount 145,774 120,886
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—FERF+=—HA=+—H 31 December 2005
(BREFIFEASN « B 2 B LB T B Efr)

EEIE-£EH

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

9 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS - GROUP

2005 2004
F 1) Beginning of the year 42,904 36,190
R HARZEHEE AR Additional acquisition of interest
BanZENEB AR in a jointly control entity to
become a subsidiary — 99,851
IR Additions 54,106 27,429
EAME - BE MK Transfer to property, plant and
(Htit6) equipment (Note 6) (41,329) (114,789)
EBAREME (KiE7) Transfer to investment properties
(Note 7) (2,160) —
ERER Exchange differences 841 —
HE Disposals — (5,777)
F K End of the year 54,362 42,904

£ % 2005 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—EFTAFF=H=+—H 31 December 2005
(BR1FRIFERSN - BT & BB LB F T B EAL)

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

10 BEEE-£E 10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP
WENR
ReE
BEE Toll road
BE Negative operating o
Goodwill goodwill right Total
R-EENE-A-H At 1 January 2004
KR Cost 5,576 (251,856) - (246,280)
R Accumulated amortisation (557) 77,216 — 76,659
REFE Net book amount 5,019 (174,640) — (169,621)
BZ-Z8ME+-A=1t-8 Yearended
LEE 31 December 2004
ENREFE Opening net book amount 5,019 (174,640) — (169,621)
R Additions 3,599 — — 3,599
3 Amortisation (557) 36,349 — 35,792
FREEFE Closing net book amount 8,061 (138,291) — (130,230)
R-BEME+=-A=1-H At 31 December 2004
KR Cost 9,175 (251,856) — (242,681)
2 EH Accumulated amortisation (1,114) 113,565 — 112,451
REFE Net book amount 8,061 (138,291) — (130,230)
BZ-ZFAF+-A=1t-8 Yearended
LEE 31 December 2005
FNREFE Opening net book amount 8,061 (138,291) - (130,230)
RIEEREEE (KE2.1ii) Derecognition of
negative goodwill
(Note 2.1 (i) — 138,291 — 138,291
KELRAEHEEARER Acquisition of a jointly
(KfzF40) controlled entity (Note 40) — — 667,229 667,229
g Amortisation - — (15,696) (15,696)
ERLZR Exchange differences 76 — — 76
FRERFE Closing net book amount 8,137 — 651,533 659,670
R-ZZRE+-A=1-H At 31 December 2005
KR Cost 8,137 — 667,229 675,366
2B Accumulated amortisation — — (15,696) (15,696)
REFE Net book amount 8,137 — 651,533 659,670
R-_EZERE+_HA=+—H  WELQ As at 31 December 2005, the toll road operating right
FRA L B VE S R IR (BT 3E23) o was pledged for certain bank borrowings (Note 23).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REBRT 2 EDE - D F

—EFFEAFF+=H=+—H 31 December 2005
(BRFFRIEERS)N - BT & BB LB For B &)

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

BaE
Note 2005 2004
JELETIRE » IEKAME  Unlisted investments, at cost 98,515 98,515
JiE W B B8~ /) 2 5RIR Amounts due from subsidiaries (b) 2,540,436 2,548,175
2,638,951 2,646,690
VERIEREL:] Provision for impairment (351,183) (451,184)
2,287,768 2,195,506

(a)

R-_EERF+_A=+—H"
TEWEB QA ZFIEEHRHE
43 o

RARBZIERBEEFRINRZ
B AREHRT B EKAREXK
BrENMEE - M E# 157,100,000
T (ZZEZT W F O
109,887,0007T) IR B ERKE 2 E
REERFEIN RBTERE

RARAREEER IR Z B
MEARREDBELER 28
K BRERAER -

43R} 2005 Annual Report

(a)

At 31 December 2005, particulars of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 43.

The amounts due from subsidiaries as included in
the Company’s non-current assets are unsecured
and repayable on demand. Except for an amount
of HK$157,100,000 (2004: HK$109,887,000) which
bears interest at prevailing borrowing rates in Hong
Kong, the remaining balances are interest-free.

The amounts due from subsidiaries as included in
the Company’s current assets are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

BRI B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited
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—ZTERFF+_HA=1+—H 31 December 2005
(BR1EFIEEERS) - AT £ BB LB T R ENL)
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

12 REBEQNTIzEZ—5H 12 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES - GROUP
2005 2004
F4) Beginning of the year 2,320,260 2,250,321
H#0 Additions 148,005 57,161
& Disposals — (43,227)
i RN Share of associates’ results
—BR B AT & F — Profit before taxation 275,647 240,497
— I8 — Taxation (33,800) (28,697)
— VYRR ES — Minority interest 12,323 (9,647)
254,170 202,153
B AR B Dividend received (105,041) (146,148)
ERZE%E Exchange differences 27,365 —
F 4R End of the year 2,644,759 2,320,260
R-EZERF+-_A=+—HHBERD Interests in associates at 31 December 2005 included
AR BIEREAE¥14,212,0005T (= goodwill of HK$14,212,000 (2004: HK$9,663,000).

T4 : #H¥9,663,0000T) °
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ZZFERF+=A=+—H 31 December 2005
(BR1F5IE RSN - BT 2 BB LB F T BEL)
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

12 RBEQRIZRRE K8 (&) 12 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES - GROUP (continued)
FEBE AT (R E0 AR A M The results, assets and liabilities of its principal associates,
K2 AR KHEE BENMBEDN all of which are incorporated in the PRC, are as follows:
T

BEEZ%
EE & WA il Interest
2R Name Assets Liabilities Revenue Profit held (%)
ZEEERE 2005
ABRAER R Shenzhen Expressway
BRAR(TFYBE])  Company Limited
(“Shenzhen Expressway”) 9,691,649 3,563,996 867,737 527,326 30.03
hEEREERD CSG Holding Co., Ltd. (‘CSG") 5,311,792 2,689,763 2,183,832 303,105 26.40
ERAR ((REEE])
KEERTIREE Tianjin CSG Architectural Glass
ARAR([XEER])  Co., Ltd. (‘Tianjin CSG") 468,902 235,354 246,040 46,621 25
RIFEBMRERDE  Shenzhen Westem Logistics
(TE=Rl) Co., Ltd. (‘Western Logistics”) 416,229 16,896 37,553 10,607 20

15,888,572 6,506,009 3,335,162 887,669

“EEME 2004

YRR Shenzhen Expressway 7,098,984 1,375,804 665,575 391,256 30.03
BEEE CSG 4,460,243 2,143,731 1,744,079 318,565 23.92
KERR Tianjin CSG 405,492 260,002 132,215 15,350 25
kit i Western Logistics 208,511 15,889 37,283 16,006 20

12,173,230 3,795,516 2,579,152 741,267
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—EFTAFF=H=+—H 31 December 2005
(BR1FRIFERSN - BT & BB LB F T B EAL)

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)
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HEEZEFHERBAT -KE
REBELRIZEHIEERTIRYITHES
%%'W%F%ﬁ*ﬁmuﬁﬁﬁ & ([#5%
B ]) RJELR 2 B35 B 50% K 45 %
I B IREER B AR - &
%@E.EK%TE{\/!FQEFAEG&{%E&
% JELAAREBRFAMKED L
ZH B 5 AR (FFE40) - z«%.—:%’ﬁli%
BELER - W T B AAEBRELRIE
FIBERAGTNEEMERE  URHEERM
EEDEENGDE  IIAKEEER

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

ENTITIES - GROUP

The Group has 50% and 45% interests in jointly controlled
entities, Shenzhen Airport International Express Supervision
Center Co., Ltd. (“Airport Express”) and JEL respectively.
Airport Express was incorporated in the PRC with principal
activities of providing customs supervision and express
cargo handling services. JEL is a newly acquired jointly
controlled entity (Note 40) and its principal activity is
investment holding. The following amounts represent the
Group’s share of the assets and liabilities, and sales and
results of the jointly controlled entities which are included

BRMEFZERA : in the consolidated balance sheet and income statement:
2005 2004
M5 R4 S R4
Airport Airport
Express JEL Express
BE Assets:
EMEEE Non-current assets 22,949 661,482 24,414
MENEE Current assets 31,064 13,581 27,080
54,013 675,063 51,494
BE: Liabilities:
mEAaE Current liabilities 4,639 57,918 4,156
FEE Net assets 49,374 617,145 47,338
WA Income 25,183 49,976 21,563
=355 Expenses 14,572 37,000 14,456
FE4AF Profit for the year 10,611 12,976 7,107
2 [E] 125 Proportionate interests in
BB AR jointly controlled entities
1 2 BE
50% 45% 50%

AEBEEZLRIEH BB A RERS Y E
FRERKAEE -

AN B IR B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s
interests in the jointly controlled entities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements B [}

—EFFEAFF+=H=+—H 31 December 2005
(BRFFRIEERS)N - BT & BB LB For B &)

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

14 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS -

GROUP
2005
F4 Beginning of the year 216,594
HO AR BEAE Opening fair value adjustment (Note 2.1(iv))

(BtiE2.1(iv) (23,199)
EhEEE R AR (A77£22) Revaluation deficits transferred to equity (Note 22) (24,147)
BE Disposals (5,838)
NERIEREL] Impairment (5,234)
EHZRE Exchange differences 2,635
F R End of the year 160,811

AHHEZEREERR

Available-for-sale financial assets include the following

2005
ETESH  BOREE: Listed securities, at fair value:
—REZEHF—BE — Equity securities — Hong Kong 27,353
EERMSZIELTES Unlisted securities without active market,
RN E RS at cost less impairment:
— AR — Cost 157,553
—BERE — Impairment (24,095)
133,458
160,811
FhEEME Market value of listed securities 27,353
15 REZSH KB 15 INVESTMENT SECURITIES - GROUP
2004
RERES Equity securities:
—&HEL™ — Listed in Hong Kong 74,699
—JE LM RER S — Unlisted 141,895
216,594
kR EESME

43R} 2005 Annual Report

Market value of listed securities 51,707
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B B % R B o

—EFTAFF=H=+—H 31 December 2005
(BR1FRIFERSN - BT & BB LB F T B EAL)

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

160 > p
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17

18

TTEemMITAE-& 16 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - GROUP
2005 2004
AR — R RELE A Interest rate swaps — cash flow
hedges 1,343 =

R-ZZETRAFT-A=1T—8H  R&E&E
ﬂfﬁ%Aﬁm REAXRE R EE
314,000,0007T °

HtERBEE-K£E
$EIZW% 2R (RY) BR
T(ri%ﬁE%qu) ‘E‘Eiq:"f__ /}IbﬁﬁE‘(
T(MM*%MAHE_77iﬁ¥£H
TARBERIIREEEGE  AARK
39]75000mﬁﬂkﬁﬂ&%4M* Vinkis:
BAERAT ([FREWRRE])43%H)
i ZEREERAFERIXAN -
HE-_ZTZTRAF+_A=+—HIL "' &
ﬁz%%ﬁimﬁ Eit e 22 &

BSEARIRMIRDEE] -
e L E S

BRPYEAFRFILIL L HE A
REHE 46,210,000 RBEAE AR H
87 636,0007T ©

17

18

AN B IR B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest
rate swap contract at 31 December 2005 were
HK$314,000,000.

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS - GROUP

On 16 May 2005, Total Logistics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(“Total Logistics”), a subsidiary of the Group, entered
into an agreement with Zhongxin Logistics Co., Ltd. to
acquire 43% of equity interest in Citic Logistics Fritz Co.,
Ltd. at a consideration of RMB39,775,000. The
consideration was paid in 2005. However, at 31 December
2005, the acquisition was not yet completed and therefore
the payment was recorded under “other non-current assets”.

PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Property under development was newly acquired during
the year and represented land use rights of HK$46,210,000
and related capital expenditure of HK$7,636,000.

3Rk 2005 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements B [}

—EFFEAFF+=H=+—H 31 December 2005
(BRFFRIEERS)N - BT & BB LB For B &)

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

19 X R H M ERR 19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
rEH EAF
Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
EBREWR Trade receivables 61,727 47,925 - —
W EWEURE Less: Provision for impairment
B of receivables (1,902) (2,057) — —
¥ W —  Trade receivables — net
R 59,825 45,868 — —
HERENME  Receivables from disposal
e 2 FIE of investment properties 1,923 225,198 — —
H fth FE UK Other receivables 56,446 74,377 891 989
118,194 345,443 891 989
XGRS ZEEBERI0AZE120 Trade receivables generally have credit terms of 30 to
H  AEER_ZFZERAFR-_ZTTNMF 120 days. As at 31 December 2005 and 2004, the ageing
T A=4+—H ' FEEWRAERE L0 analysis of the trade receivables were as follows:
T
2005 2004
0-90H 0-90 days 43,718 37,435
91-180H 91-180 days 12,650 6,512
181-365H 181-365 days 980 2,134
366H A Over 365 days 4,379 1,844
61,727 47,925
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—EFTAFF=H=+—H 31 December 2005
(BR1FRIFERSN - BT & BB LB F T B EAL)

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

20 RERRESEEY 20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
PN | AT
Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
BTN EFIR% Cash at bank and in hand 266,412 227,893 6,683 10,465
MHEASRITTEZ  Short-term bank deposits — 15,061 — —
W 0 BHEIRIRIT  Less: Pledged bank
F#(a) deposits (a) (4,792) (8,487) — —
261,620 234,467 6,683 10,465
(a) R-ZZETERF+_A=+—8 (a) At 31 December 2005, pledged bank deposits
EERRTEFRARARLRITRE represented the deposits pledged for the letter of
ZHEAFR - guarantee.
21 BAR-KEEAQF 21 SHARE CAPITAL - GROUP AND COMPANY
ERTRY
(F&h)
Number of EER BRARE
issued shares Ordinary Share k]
(thousands) shares premium Total

R-BENF At 1 January 2004

—A—H 11,217,212 1,121,721 538,163 1,659,884
EEBkiE Employee share
ATl option scheme
— TR - Proceeds from
shares issued 215,600 21,560 37,586 59,146
R-ZEENF At 31 December 2004
+=ZR=+-—-H 11,432,812 1,143,281 575,749 1,719,030
R E i Shares repurchased (77,760) (7,776) (11,520) (19,296)
B e Employee share
el option scheme
—RERS - Value of services
ZEE provided — — 694 694
Z_EZRHE At 31 December 2005
+=B=+—H 11,355,052 1,135,505 564,923 1,700,428
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RA-SKEREQT (&)

ERREEER B BB A2008 K (=
TEME : 200180 BEREERE
KoL (ZZETWEF - BREEEY
0.170) - AR HTRNHBEZHH
B °

RZZFEZRFTA ARRREBHE
REMBRAREES 77,760,000
BRgn - BRBROKNE=RREEEAE
DR ABERE0.2557T B #0.230
7T - BRI D TS B SRIB BT BB
19,296,0007C * E B EEZEF N
BeBHIEI—EERF+_A=1+—8
ZELBERHOHE2EEHE -

43R} 2005 Annual Report
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—EFFEAFF+=H=+—H 31 December 2005
(BRHEFIFFERSN - BTE 2 REE LB Frs8El)
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)
SHARE CAPITAL - GROUP AND COMPANY
(continued)
The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 20,000
million shares (2004: 20,000 million shares) with a par
value of HK$0.1 per share (2004: HK$0.1 per share). All
issued shares are fully paid.

During October 2005, the Company repurchased
77,760,000 shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The highest and lowest prices paid for all such
purchases were HK$0.255 and HK$0.230 respectively.
The total amount paid to repurchase these shares was
HK$19,296,000 and has been deducted from shareholders’
equity. These shares acquired have been fully cancelled
as at 31 December 2005.

BRI B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited
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—EFTAFF=H=+—H 31 December 2005
(BR1FRIFERSN - BT & BB LB F T B EAL)

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

21

RA-SKEERT (&)

B
BERERTHROESZTRES  KER
B 7 (E AT {6k S AT SZBDAT(E o

ERABREHESE RARM 2 NETH
TEEWT

21

SHARE CAPITAL - GROUP AND COMPANY
(continued)

Share options

Share options granted to certain directors and employees
are unconditional and vested immediately.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding
and their related weighted average exercise prices are
as follows:

2005 2004
FHTREE FHIEE
Average BRRE Average RERRE
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price share options price  share options
(BR#ET) (F &) (BRET) (F&t)
(HK$ per share)  (thousands) (HK$ per share) (thousands)
®—A—-8 At 1 January — — 0.278 231,000
ERH Granted 0.282 296,600 — —
BT Exercised - - 0.274 (215,600)
BEXH Lapsed 0.282 (1,100) 0.336 (15,400)
R+ZHA=+—-H At31 December 0.282

R—ZZEERE—H+ h B
296,600,000H B EASRITEES
o282 iR FTHDEEREE -

FFER—_ZEERFE+-_A=1+— Elr'ﬁi
1TE 2 BRRER T ATTERER=F
ZF—H+—BXEXW -

REBE_ZEERF+_A=+—HLHF
ERTHHEAINFEBNRHEABlack-
Scholes B E B IR AT B2 BB RE
#0.002347T - B2 BEREB T IR
RETE O BTABEI28 T ZKRERE

%o {TEEBA0.2827T - FEHIKIE

2.8568% ' FHEAFR AT - THHIRKRE
R AE1.7857 % & EE R F R X

1.02% - FBHAK IBIR 156 f FHED
WHBZzBBEKRETE

AN B IR B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited

295,500 = =

On 19 January 2005, 296,600,000 share options with
an exercise price of HK$0.282 were granted to certain
directors and employees.

All share options outstanding as at 31 December 2005
are exercisable and will be expired on 11 January 2010.

The fair value of each share option granted during the
year determined using the Black-Scholes valuation model
was HK$0.00234. The significant inputs into the model
were share price of HK$0.28 at the grant date, exercise
price at HK$0.282, standard deviation of expected share
price returns of 2.8568%, expected life of options of 5
years, expected dividend paid out rate of 1.7857% and
annual risk-free interest rate of 1.02%. The volatility
measured at the standard deviation of expected share
price returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share
prices over the last year.
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—ZTTARF+=HA=1—H 31 December 2005
(BR1F5IE RSN - BT 2 BB LB F T BEL)
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

22 HibfEE 22 OTHER RESERVES
RKE Group
TEREE
BaiH
Equity AR
componentof ~ EfEffE HEEE ENRE HERE  HhEE ANBH
convertible Fairvalue  Reserve  Capital  Goodwill Hedging 5% Contributed ai
note  reserve funds  reserve  reserve  reserve Translation  surplus Total
(Wi (b)) (Mita))
(Note (b)) (Note (a))
—ETME- )5] AR Balance at 1 January 2004 - — 108,011 2919 (173,908) — 1,679 13,005 (48,294
HERE QAP HER Release of reserves upon
&R 2 il disposal of partial interest
in an associate - - (692) - 14,325 — 148 — 13,781
HREBHERZ Transfer from retained
RREs earnings to reserve funds - - 6,791 - = = = = 6,791
HRBRMERZ Transfer from retained
BRfEE earnings to capital reserve - - — 55875 - - - — 55875
ERER Currency translation differences - - - - - - (27) - (1)
“EEME+=R=1-R Balance at 31 December 2004
<3 - - 14110 58,794 (159,583 ) - 1,800 13,005 28,126
—ETRE-fA-H- Balance at 1 January 2005,
mE as per above - - 14110 58,794 (159,583 ) - 1,800 13,005 28,126
FARSTIERER Opening adjustment for the
IR (B32.1(iv) adoption of HKAS 32 (Note 2.1iv)) 56,405 - - - - - - — 56405
—EERE-fA-H- Balance at 1 January 2005,
S as restated 56,405 - 14110 58,794  (159,583) - 1,800 13,005 84,531
PREEFE—THLE Fair value losses
LERARE - avallable-for-sale financial assets - (4,147) = = = = = —  (o4147)
g G AN Recovery of reserves Upon
ERZERE disposal of partial
interest in an associate - - 692 - — — — - 692
ftrABRERZE Transfer from retained
REEe earnings to reserve funds — — 9,515 — - - - - 9,515
fTEERIA Derivative financial instrument - - - — - 1,343 - - 1,343
ERES Currency translation differences = = 398 = = = 44,734 = 45132
“ERRFTZR=1-H Balance at 31 December 2005
<33 56,405 (24147) 124715 58,794 (159,583 ) 1,343 46,534 13,005 117,066
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(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)
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22 Htf#EfE (&) 22 OTHER RESERVES (continued)
¥ Company
TEREE
 Eag g
Equity AR
component of Contributed CH
convertible note surplus Total
(K5t (a)
(Note (a))
—EENE—-HB—H Balance at 1 January and
R+t=-A=1+—-R#&&% 31 December 2004 — 58,515 58,515
—_EERE—-HA—H Balance at 1 January 2005,
ages o mE as per above — 58,515 58,515
B AR Opening adjustment for the
EI2 MR adoption of
(Ktz£2.1(iv) HKAS 32 (Note 2.1(iv)) 56,405 — 56,405
—EERE-A—H Balance at 1 January 2005,
gt EFHERR as restated and balance
“EZhE+ZH at 31 December 2005
=t+-R&R 56,405 58,515 114,920
(a) NEBEZHABBIBERNE (@) The contributed surplus of the Group represents

the difference between the nominal value of the shares
of the former group holding company, acquired
pursuant to the group reorganisation on 9 January
1990, over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange therefor.

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the excess of the fair value of the shares of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the same group
reorganisation, over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.
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(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

22 Hftf#fe (&) 22 OTHER RESERVES (continued)

(b) BEFBENERZHETE  EFREZ (b) In accordance with the PRC regulations, certain
ETRAIEDRAFNZA © B companies in the PRC are required to transfer part
HRBEeBFNER —FhERE of their profits after taxation to various reserve funds,
ZERe#EEe (TE2IK) - B which are non-distributable, before profit distributions
CHBEARZELARZCESER are made. The amounts of the transfers are subject
BAGZzEEHHER AR to the approval of the boards of directors of these
BERHER  AREE - companies, in accordance with their joint venture

agreements and/or articles of association.

23 BEX 23 BORROWINGS
by | VNN
Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
ERE Non-current
RITER Bank borrowings
- BER* - Secured* 317,477 — — =
—ERH - Unsecured 61,664 101,874 — —
B —FNEH  Less: Current portion of
L EHER long-term borrowings (31,895) (52,185) - —
347,246 49,689 — —
E Current
RITER Bank borrowings
—mE A - Unsecured 231,058 — 100,000 —
—FERNEH Current portion of
REER long-term borrowings
—HRITER ~ Bank borrowings
—FHER - secured” 29,667 — - =
- RITEX - Bank borrowings
—E KA - unsecured 2,228 52,185 - —
262,953 52,185 100,000 —
BEX Total borrowings 610,199 101,874 100,000 —
*  BM8,667,000 7T HIERIT Bk A NS B 2 YT B XK * Bank borrowings of HK$8,667,000 were secured by the toll road operating
AR (HTaE10) © B #5308,810,000TH) right of the Group (Note 10); bank borrowings of HK$308,810,000
RITE AR E B FEJEL AR BEEIR T o were secured by the Group’s equity interest in JEL.
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(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

23 BEXR#BE) 23 BORROWINGS (continued)
ERWMEHBELT The maturity of the borrowings is as follows:
AEE ¥/ /N
Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
1R Within 1 year 262,953 52,185 100,000 —
122K Between 1 and 2 years 89,728 40,185 — —
2Z 5% A Between 2 and 5 years 256,994 6,556 — —
BENZEEE  Wholly repayable within 5 years 609,675 98,926 100,000 —
BEIA E Over 5 years 524 2,948 — —
610,199 101,874 100,000 —
REEHHNEBRF QT : The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date

were as follows:

2005 2004

HK$ Us$ RMB HKS Us$ RVB
BT xn ARY AT 9 ARK

RITER Bank borrowings 3.7%-4.9% 15%  5.0%5.7%  1.2%-3.7% 15% -
EXMEEmEERE AR EBEMRL - The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their
fair value.
EXNERESEN T EEREL The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated

in the following currencies:

rEE ¥ /N
Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
BT HK$ 513,810 88,000 100,000 —
= USs$ 11,664 13,874 — —
AR RMB 84,725 — — —

610,199 101,874 100,000 =

AN B IR B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited %R 2005 Annual Report
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AEEA T RERERRE

—EFFEAFF+=H=+—H 31 December 2005
(BRFFRIEERS)N - BT & BB LB For B &)

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

23 BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group has the following undrawn banking facilities:

2005 2004

PN Floating rate
——FANEH — Expiring within one year 195,000 375,940
——F A B H — Expiring beyond one year 90,000 162,000
285,000 537,940

E R Fixed rate

——F NI — Expiring within one year 80,577 28,195
365,577 566,135

ARREE-KER AT
R-_ZEZE-_FNA—H  ARE%ETH
=T {E 78 ¥ 330,000,0007T 2 7] & B &
B 7 MR I IR AR R R YT
REEBAR(IRIKE]) - BB
BB EERBE0366 B2
ENE AN AREITARTRAEA
PR —_ZFEE+FELA=+—HBEH -

AEBEPRABERLSTEIFI25R
(Ff3E2.16v) - BEEERE E‘Mﬁ&%¥ﬁ

BED 2 DA BERETROME

~rfBE BREAHR
ﬂﬁﬁ miﬁL#HZ#%W‘

BEHFZNEFE - FIrSABRERL
B cBE EERERRERIE
o+ (5E22) -

43R} 2005 Annual Report

24 CONVERTIBLE NOTE - GROUP AND COMPANY

On 1 August 2002, the Company issued to its controlling
shareholder, Shenzhen Investment Holding Corporation
(“SIHC”), a redeemable non-interest bearing convertible
note with a face value of HK$330,000,000, carrying rights
to convert into ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.365
each. The convertible note has a term of five years from
the date of issue and will be matured on 31 July 2007.

The Group adopted HKAS 32 retrospectively (Note 2.1(iv)).
The fair values of the liability component and the equity
conversion component were calculated retrospectively
upon issuance of the note.

The fair value of the liability component, included in the
convertible note, was calculated using a market interest
rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond. The residual
amount, representing the value of the equity conversion
component, is included in shareholders’ equity as other
reserves (Note 22).

BRI B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited
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—EFTAFF=H=+—H 31 December 2005
(BR1FRIFERSN - BT & BB LB F T B EAL)

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

24 MRAREE-EBKATF (&) 24 CONVERTIBLE NOTE - GROUP AND COMPANY
(continued)

FEEBERERANITRREETEN The convertible note recognised in the balance sheet is
™~ calculated as follows:

—ZEEEN\A—-HA# Face value of convertible note issued

Hmi%zw on 1 August 2002 330,000
Bz H Equity component (56,405)
RZZEZ-_F\A-BNIERE Liability component on initial recognition

MEESH at 1 August 2002 273,595
R-_ZTLF-A-BAEHH Liability component at 1 January 2005 299,591
MEER (Hi132) Interest expense (Note 32) 11,444
RZZEERE+-_RA=T—-HAEHH Liability component at 31 December 2005 311,035

—TEERF+A=+—H " "I’K The fair value of the liability component of the convertible
= TJ"‘“ MBEHBN AR BEER B note at 31 December 2005 was HK$306,775,000. It is
306,775,0007T - A BEEREERK calculated by discounting the cash flows at a borrowing
FELTEHRES REIRTE - rate of 4.7%.
ZBRMNEERAZNAERF ‘+’5£ 1 Interest expense on the note is calculated using the effective
BEBHANERFEIS2EFE interest method by applying the effective interest rate of

3.82% to the liability component.

25 EIEFESHEBE-—&£E 25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES - GROUP
BIEFGEMABENE2ESNT : The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year
are as follows:

2005
F1) Beginning of the year =
W HFREGEE A AR Acquisition of a jointly controlled entity
(Hiat40) (Note 40) 72,867
EEm&ER (F733) Recognised in the income statement
(Note 33) (1,777)
FR End of the year 71,090

170 pp FYIBBR 2% A FR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited 37 2005 Annual Report
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—EFFEAFF+=H=+—H 31 December 2005
(BRFFRIEERS)N - BT & BB LB For B &)

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

26 BEEWA-KH 26 DEFERRED INCOME - GROUP
2005 2004
FUREFE Opening net book amount 147,106 166,980
FiEERER (F:229) Recognised in the
income statement (Note 29) (26,746) (19,874)
ERER Exchange differences 3,422 —
FREEFE Closing net book amount 123,782 147,106

ELEWARE BT HER T 2 50AH
REEEZMRABRRER L WA #
MR NP 2 I E R R R IA RS
7R o

Deferred income represents the amount granted by the
PRC local government authorities, which is applied to
designated logistics projects and recognised in the income
statement on a systematic basis over the period necessary
to match with the cost intended to be subsidised.

27 LPERRER-—KE 27 AMOUNT DUE TO A MINORITY SHAREHOLDER
- GROUP
LERRERTERAER 2B AR The amount due to a minority shareholder represents
FUTMER BRI RER AR ([EmY loans granted to Shenzhen South China International
ml) 2 LEBRREHRZER - ZFEBR Logistics Co., Ltd. (“SCIL”), a subsidiary of the Group,
DEEER . 2N EREAR—FAE by a minority shareholder. The amount is unsecured,
B o interest-free and not repayable within one year.
28 XBREMENK 28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
TEE AT
Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
EBENT Trade payables 27,821 20,509 — —
FERTIRENMF Payable for construction
in progress 24,469 — — —
WEE R4  Payable for the acquisition
ERNTIMEZ  of ajointly controlled entity
ZEMRER  (Note 40)
(Ktzt40) 24,939 — — —
Hith Others 64,983 69,641 2,136 1,197
142,212 90,150 2,136 1,197
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(BR1FRIFERSN - BT & BB LB F T B EAL)

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

28

29

FBRAEMESR (B

R-EBEERFR BTN+ _A=+—
B E£XENK(BIEESEENEN

BARE ) 5IR) M RRER AN T ¢

28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

of trading in nature) was as follows:

At 31 December 2005 and 2004, the ageing analysis of
the trade payables (including amounts due to related parties

2005 2004
0-90H 0-90 days 23,509 19,406
91-180H 91-180 days 2,355 729
181-365 H 181-365 days 1,444 205
3658 A Over 365 days 513 169
27,821 20,509
Hizs— 25 29 OTHER GAINS - NET
2005 2004
PSR PN Interest income 4,744 4,509
i& B A Dividend income 2,408 2,201
BERNFHEBEARR Deferred government grants
(Bt #£26) recognised in the income
statement (Note 26) 26,746 19,874
W K RIESIE A A Acquisition of a jointly controlled
FIEFEEMN AR EER entity — fair value of the net
BB U BB R AR B0 (B15E40)  assets acquired over the
purchase consideration
(Note 40) 30,987 —
W Bl B s 2 AR Recovery of bad debts written off 20,036 —
MERA Rental income 4,147 1,646
HEBE AR MDERZ Reversal of loss on disposal of
Bk EEm partial interest in an associate 15,084 —
e+ Rt ERA#ERMME  Reversal of impairment on leasehold
280 (K178) land and land use rights (Note 8) 27,540 —
KREMEAREBEKE Fair value gains on investment
(B1aE7) properties (Note 7) 2,498 —
HMELEEB BT Amortisation of goodwill and
negative goodwill — 35,792
BERF B 2 W as Gain from waiver of interest on
government loans — 55,875
HEREYE 2 W Gain on disposals of investment
properties — 1,586
Hh, Others 9,310 1,974
143,500 153,206

AN B IR B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited
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(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

30 RMEESENER 30 EXPENSES BY NATURE
PIEHENRAN - HERTISHEENAN Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing
ERERALRHMEEERRNNERSN costs, administrative expenses and other operating
wmr expenses are analysed as follows:
2005 2004
e HBERREEZEA Depreciation, amortisation and
impairment losses 43,203 20,577
EERAMAZ (Hi£31) Employee benefit expenses
(Note 31) 50,234 42,637
B A A Transportation expenses 161,093 128,954
ME X Rental charges 1,462 1,376
H A& Other tax expenses 7,011 1,228
ZitBERERERE Commission and management
fee for toll road 11,885 —
ZE RN & Auditors’ remuneration 1,988 1,200
HE B E AR D ER Loss of disposal of partial interest
Z BB in an associate — 15,084
BFEHEE (i) Revaluation deficits on buildings
(Note 6) — 3,816
31 EEEAMAX 31 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
2005 2004
T & K oM Wages and salaries 37,962 39,646
RTEENEENHERE Share options granted to directors
(Bta£21) and employees (Note 21) 694 —
RIREKA—FREMNKETE  Pension costs - defined
(Ktata) contribution plans (Note(a)) 3,147 2,991
HAth (ffata) Others (Note(a)) 8,431 —
50,234 42,637
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—EFTAFF=H=+—H 31 December 2005

(BREFIFEASN - FTE 2 BEE LB TR 8E)
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)
31 EERABX (8) 31 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued)
(a) EERSNEEETMH (a) Directors’ and senior management’s
emoluments
HE_TETAF+-_A=+—H The remuneration of each director for the year ended
ItFE  BRESEOHFMHAET 31 December 2005 is set out below:
RN B REES
BEMT  RUNHE
Employer’s Compensation
[ BEME  HMB\A contribution  for loss of
EEHE He #4 Discretionary Inducement Other  to pension office as a5t
Name of director Fees Salary bonuses fees benefits® scheme director Total
FER
Li Hei Hu - 1,200 300 — 483 - - ,983
]
Chen Chao - 1,200 300 — 483 72 - 2,055
Li Jing Qi — 1,040 250 — 363 60 - 713
2=
Liu Jun - 1,040 250 — 363 60 - 1,713
Al
Qiao Gang = 219 340 = 52 14 — 625
HER
To Chi Keung, Simon — — — — — — — —
Leung Ming Yuen, Simon 250 = = = = = = 250
TR
Ding Xun 250 = = = = = = 250
R
Nip Yun Wing 250 = = = = = = 250
HE_ZENF+-_A=+—H The remuneration of each director for the year ended
ILEE  BRESOHHFMAT : 31 December 2004 is set out below:
RIAGHEIN REES
Bz RUNHE
Employer’s Compensation
miERe BEME  H#ER contributionto  for loss of
EEpE ne #4% Discretionary Inducement Other pension office as &t
Name of director Fees Salary bonuses fees benefits® scheme director Total
ZER
Li Hei Lu — 320 300 — 161 — — 781
]
Chen Chao — 1,080 300 — 483 72 — 1,935
Li Jing Qi — 940 250 — 363 60 — 1,613
gwﬁ[b)
Liu Jun® — 560 250 — 241 35 — 1,086
)l
Qiao Gang — 171 145 — 111 12 — 439
it
To Chi Keung, Simon — — — — — — — —
ﬁﬁ*(c)
Huang Chuan Qi® = = = = = = = =
%E%(c)
Sun Yu Lin© — — — — - — — —
SR
Zhang Xiao Li@ = = = = = = = =
ERTe
Wang Xian Ping® 62 = = = = = = 62
Leung Ming Yuen, Simon 250 = = = = = = 250
TA
Ding Xun 250 — — — — — — 250
e
Nip Yun Wing® 125 = = = = = = 125
AN B IR B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited %R 2005 Annual Report



ir e 15 SRR P At

ZZFERF+=A=+—H 31 December 2005
(BR1F5IE RSN - BT 2 BB LB F T BEL)
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

31 EEREAMEX (&) 31 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued)
(a) EERSHREEEBHMH (2) (a) Directors’ and senior management’s

emoluments (continued)

Kzt - Notes:

(a) EMENeEREERHAER - (@)  Other benefits include housing and other allowances.

(b) RZZEENFAA=-TMNHEHZEE- (b)  Appointed on 24 May 2004.

(c) MR-ZEZTWE=ZA_+/"BHEI- (c)  Resigned on 26 March 2004.

(d) REZETOFRA=FTWHBAERE: R= (d)  Appointed on 24 May 2004; resigned on 3 December 2004.

TEME+ - A=BFHE -

(e) MRZZZNFMA=+=HFHE- (6)  Resigned on 22 April 2004.

H RZZEZEFNA+SBEE- ()  Appointed on 16 August 2004.

RZEZRAFR-_ZTTMF+ = No directors waived any emoluments during the years

AR=+—HILFE REEMAE ended 31 December 2005 and 2004.

EWMEMS -

RZEZRAFR_ZTTMF+ = During the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004,

A=+—HLFE  AEEBETE no emoluments had been paid by the Group to the

MEEXNMESEREEEMA directors as an inducement to join or upon joining

FEMAREB R 2 REHIER the Group or as a compensation for loss of office.

REBIZREE -
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(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

31 EEEFMAX (&)

(b) AfumRSEHAL
REEAEEARRRFHMA
TEEOER(CETMOF - MH)
EX HMee#HR EXHH -
Hp—R (CTTWOF : —R) R
SHALTZMETET

31

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include four (2004
four) directors whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis presented above. The emoluments
payable to the remaining one (2004 one) individual
during the year are as follows:

2005 2004
HEARFH & KERL Basic salaries and allowances 1,232 750
TEAT Bonuses 295 495
RIKREETEIMHE R Contributions to the retirement
scheme 12 12
H fib 48 F| Other benefits 423 423
1,962 1,680
HEFHME TIEEHER : The emoluments fell within the following band:
A
Number of individuals
2005 2004
FHENE[E Emolument band
75 #51,500,001 7T HK$1,500,001
—#%2,000,0007T - HK$2,000,000 1 1
32 B A 32 FINANCE COSTS
2005 2004
FMEEBR : Interest expense:
—IRITE K - Bank borrowings 14,336 2,495
— AR (K iF24) — Convertible note (Note 24) 11,444 —
25,780 2,495

176 )
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33 ME
HRARERAEEARE L EEL
TRERRER - WAL EREBFFHR
TR o BB ASMEE 2 FERTE B A
DIREAREKLEXGMEMRAZHE
AR 2B RTRIREE AR
B2 RITHEGFTE -

33
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—EFFEAFF+=H=+—H 31 December 2005
(BRHEFIFFERSN - BTE 2 REE LB Frs8El)
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as the Group
did not generate any assessable profits in Hong Kong
during the year. Taxes on overseas profits have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions
in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,

interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

2005 2004
B HIE Current income tax
— B EMER — PRC enterprise income tax 6,021 15,875
RIEFTS M (M aE25) Deferred income tax (Note 25) (1,777) —
AEFEBEEREE Overprovisions in prior years
— BB — Hong Kong — (8,129)
4,244 7,746

REEBARBIATRHN 2 518 R G
BAEETZMB AL LA RF
Nz 15%MEBEBEREMTE 2R
BHoEZBOAT -

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the preferential
tax rate of 15% in Shenzhen, the location in which the
Group’s major subsidiaries operate as follows:

2005 2004
B 7% B & ) Profit before income tax 364,216 322,186
B E(EEEE N a AR Less: Share of profit of associates (254,170) (202,153)
110,046 120,033
B E15% Tax calculated at tax rate of 15%
(ZZEZNF : 15%) (2004: 15%)
SAEZHIA 16,507 18,005
HEfphR AR R 2 E Effect of different tax rates
in other locations (2,872) 710
EARDZWA Income not subject to tax (20,204) (21,653)
PRI 2 2 Expenses not deductible
for tax purposes 1,230 3,400
RIER 2T Unrecognised tax losses 9,583 15,413
EFEBEEREE Overprovisions in prior years — (8,129)
I8 Income tax expense 4,244 7,746
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3 RRTREZEEAELER 34

AABESEEFEABRGNEIELRAT
B BRERPEENSE A B
85,490,000 (ZEEPF : B
96,808,0007T)
35 BREF 35
=K
ERERBFIRBEARQREDEE ARE
BT BRAFRE 3T E BRI
FHHBEEE -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company is
HK$85,490,000 (2004: HK$96,808,000).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by
the average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year.

2005 2004

RARERFEABEAT  Profit attributable to equity holders

of the Company 360,253 315,364
EETEBERAOMEFHE  Weighted average number of

(Fhz) ordinary shares in issue

(thousands) 11,415,733 11,376,379
BRERZRAN (FRAEW) Basic earnings per share

(HK cents per share) 3.16 2.77

g
BRETRN s RERA A #EANE
EEBBRHE A MER URIBECHITER
AREV I BT - AR BMAR
AEENEEERR - AT RREEEE
Bt - TR REBRBRREALSE R
F » T3 BRI AR 58 B DA ST SH AN B 8 AR
MG E - ERERE - RIBERITRE
BHEFH MR BENER(EE - BT
AR EEBERRIRRRNHFHF
EmE AIBANKRMNHER - HERIT
BRERRERAAEE  FHBRES
BREENTRR -
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Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The Company has two categories of dilutive potential
ordinary shares: convertible note and share options. The
convertible note is assumed to have been converted into
ordinary shares and the net profit is adjusted to eliminate
the interest expense less the tax effect. For the share
options, a calculation is done to determine the number
of shares that could have been acquired at fair value
(determined as the average annual market share price
of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary value
of the subscription rights attached to outstanding share
options. As the exercise price of the share options exceed
their fair value, no dilutive ordinary shares are therefore
generated from the share options.
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35 BRER (&) 35 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

2005 2004

KAaE=FEE ARGERET Profit attributable to equity holders

of the Company 360,253 315,364
A@MREENFEEA Interest expense on convertible
(kR FIR) note (net of tax) 11,444 —

AUEESREBESERNNEFN Profit used to determine diluted
earnings per share 371,697 315,364

BERTEEBRAMEFHE  Weighted average number of

(Fhz) ordinary shares in issue
(thousands) 11,415,753 11,376,379
R - RER AR EER E I Adjustments — assumed conversion
(FhL) of convertible note (thousands) 904,110 904,110

ESREEREFNERAA Weighted average number of
B DNHE 8 (FL) ordinary shares for diluted
earnings per share (thousands) 12,319,863 12,280,489

BrEE RN (BRREIL) Diluted earnings per share
(HK cents per share) 3.02 2.57
36 BE 36 DIVIDENDS
HE_ZSThFR-_TTNFIFENRN The dividends paid during the year ended 31 December
SR E 5 R R E®S57,164,0007T 2005 and 2004 were HK$57,164,000 (HK$0.005 per share)
(F AR A& %0.0057T) & #B% 45,731,000 and HK$45,731,000 (HK$0.004 per share) respectively.
TC (BB %0.0047T) - —EEHEFH A dividend in respect of 2005 of HK$ 0.0055 per share,
B B 0.00657T @ AT BB amounting to a total dividend of HK$62,464,000, is to
62,464,000 RN ST NFRA T be proposed at the Annual General Meeting on 11 May
—BRTHOREFAFARE LEFERE - 2006. These financial statements do not reflect this as
R BHRERARMGTBRENKRE dividend payable.
2005 2004
¥R R HARR B, - Proposed final dividend of
B %0.00557T HK$0.0055 (2004: HK$0.005)
—ZZPUF : EE0.0057C) per ordinary share 62,464 57,164
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(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

37 BEEL  (FRWRE

37 CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN)

OPERATIONS
2005 2004
(E¥51%R)
(Restated)
FRAT Profit for the year 359,972 314,440
RAEBIEA Adjustments for:
— B3 (Ha£33) - Tax (Note 33) 4,244 7,746
—E — Depreciation 14,636 13,234
—-HETH R LTI ARE - Amortisation of leasehold land and

a3 land use rights 4,671 7,343
-BREECEE - Amortisation of intangible assets 15,696 (35,792)
-BENRHEEE - Amortisation of goodwill in an associate - 309
~ W EREREH BB ARMG - Acquisition of a jointly controlled entity-

FEENAABEBBKE fair value of the net assets acquired

A (ffiE40) over the purchase consideration

(Note 40) (30,987) —
— IR HEE B AR (/7£26) - Deferred income recognised in the

income statement (Note 26) (26,746) (19,874)
— YR I E 8K 2 3R (FYaE29) - Recovery of bad debts written off

(Note 29) (20,036) _
— YR ERE — Provision for impairment of receivables 2,966 —
-N%  BERZENLEESR - Loss on disposals of property,

plant and equipment — 845
—(BOHEH & QA2 B18) - (Reversal of loss)/loss on disposal of

JSHEBLNRHHER 2 EE partial interest in an associate (15,084) 15,084
—HuRENHERR - Loss on disposals of other investments - 56
~-HEL MR LMEREREREE - Reversal of impairment of leasehold land

& (f{7£29) and land use rights (Note 29) (27,540) —
-BFEM[EE (F7:130) - Revaluation deficits on buildings (Note 30) - 3,315
— MM S H %2 W (Bit29) ~ Gain on waiver of interest on government

loans (Note 29) — (55,875)
- HEREME 2 W (H5F29) ~ Gain on disposals of investment properties

(Note 29) — (31,335)
- REWMEDRBEWE (H/7£29) - Fair value gains investment properties

(Note 29) (2,498) _
-BRE2 R EE Wa21) - Fair value of share options (Note 21) 694 —
—AHHECEREEY — Provision for impairment of available-

BB R (Hit14) for-sale financial assets (Note 14) 5,234 —
—FI B WA (BFiF29) - Interest income (Note 29) (4,744) (4,509)
-FEER (KF32) - Interest expense (Note 32) 25,780 2,495
—EEBERARN (HaF12) — Share of profit of associates (Note 12) (254,170) (202,153)
LEEREH (FEERELRZES  Changes in working capital

ERLARGRGERER (excluding the effect of acquisition of
EZENFE) a jointly controlled entity and exchange
differences on consolidation):
- B REMEKK - Trade and other receivables 5,620 (54,514)
- XBREMEMNK - Trade and other payables (5,746) (1,625)
- BERMBITER - Pledged bank deposits 3,695 (8,487)
LEEL/(FA)MEE Cash generated from/(used in) operations 55,657 (49,297)
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(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

37 HEELE(FTA)MNES #E) 37 CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN)
OPERATIONS (continued)
EREREBRA  HEWE BERK In the cash flow statement, proceeds from disposals of
HHRTSREE property, plant and equipment comprise:
2005 2004
BREEE (Hfit6) Net book amount (Note 6) 1,824 2,163
HE BB Loss on disposals — (845)
& BT 1S 3K Proceeds from disposals 1,824 1,318
38 HHEA 38 CONTINGENCIES
R-ZEZRFR-ZFTEMF+ A=+ At 31 December 2005 and 2004, contingent liabilities
—H  WARFTAMBRER ZHBEEEW not provided for in the financial statements were as follows:
B
AEME ¥ NG|
Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004

IRMLIETTELE  Corporate guarantees for
ZEFER © bank facilities utilised by:

—HtE R A] — Associates 240,752 54,603 — —

—$£=5 — A third party 4,792 4,715 — —
— HRE A - A jointly controlled

EEBAA entity 35,481 11,316 — —

— B AR — Subsidiaries — — 519,000 80,000

281,025 70,634 519,000 80,000
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(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

39 AiE—KH 39 COMMITMENTS - GROUP
(a) ’%ZI-U?K?F* (a) Capital commitments
REEBREDNAREBEENELRAHAL Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date but
Ul N not yet incurred is as follows:
2005 2004
%% B K& &% Property, plant and equipment
ERAEREE Contracted but not provided for 28,815 34,598
(b) EEHERE-AEB QA BHK (b) Operating lease commitments — when a
HA group company is the lessee
BRETAHEEERE - RRK The future aggregate minimum lease payments under
EEENFBERNT non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
2005 2004
1F A Not later than 1 year 2,315 3,074
BB1FETHBIBESFAN  Later than 1 year and not later
than 5 years 797 1,756
3,112 4,830
(c) EEHERE-XAEEQAAAE (c) Operating lease commitments — when a
A group company is the lessor
BETIREEERE A& The future minimum lease receivables under non-
EEERRBEAT : cancellable operating leases are as follows:
2005 2004
1A Not later than 1 year 4,128 3,350
FBB1FETHBIBSFEAN  Later than 1 year and not later
than 5 years 8,794 11,707
BELA Later than 5 years 6,372 6,084
19,294 21,141
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NETR

R-ZTEERFENLRB  KEBWET
JEL 45% k% - B HE_FTTH
F+-A=1+—8  wWBELEERHN
Wz A48 F) 5 Bl &2 8 49,976,0007C

N &#12,976,0007T © B WETA
BERE-T 7£$ A—H  AX&EE
EE=EB 2 WFEMER DB AEE
113,575,0007T & % #31,453,0007T °

WEERFEEMPBARIZHEE QA
P FEEN A EEBREBEHER
(ARl

—EFFEAFF+=H=+—H 31 December 2005
(BRFFRIEERS)N - BT & BB LB For B &)

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

40 ACQUISITION OF INTERESTS IN A JOINTLY

CONTROLLED ENTITY

On 5 August 2005, the Group acquired 45% of the equity
interest in JEL. The acquired business contributed revenue
of HK$49,976,000 and net profit of HK$12,976,000 to
the Group for the period from the acquisition date to 31
December 2005. If the acquisition occurred on 1 January
2005, the Group’s share of revenue and net profit would
have been HK$113,575,000 and HK$31,453,000
respectively.

Details of net assets acquired and excess of the fair value
of the net assets acquired over the purchase consideration
are as follows:

BEHE Purchase consideration:
— g FE — Cash paid 534,790
— PR R W B 9 AR A — Dividend receivable and received (39,104)
=X Total 495,686
WEFEENARBE Fair value of net assets acquired 526,673
U B8 A4 ) B B8 A B) Pk Excess of the fair value of the net assets

HEENAABEMBEABE  acquired over the purchase consideration

HE 2L n

43R} 2005 Annual Report
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40 WBHEZFERARER (&) 40 ACQUISITION OF INTERESTS IN A JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITY (continued)

WHEEANEEMBESIRET The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition are
as follows:
WU s
WERTE B
Acquiree’s
AREE carrying
Fair value amount
ReEMBEE2FEY Cash and cash equivalents 46,408 46,408
W - KE k& Property, plant and equipment 18,262 18,262
e WUNF S ¥ Toll road operating right (included in
(BREETEET) intangible assets) 1,482,731 379,884
JE& Wk Receivables 2,901 2,901
- ANES Payables (64,758) (5,180)
BEX Borrowings (151,501) (151,501)
e B IR Tax payable (1,733) (1,733)
W RS B R IR IE PR 1S 5 Deferred income tax liabilities arising
=i from the acquisition (161,926) —
FEE Net assets 1,170,384 289,041
W R F B EE(45%) Net assets acquired (45%) 526,673
BEHE Purchase consideration 495,686
AR S A R U R SR Purchase consideration payable
(B1#£28) (Note 28) (24,939)
Fr B8 R ¥ E 88 /A A]  Cash and cash equivalents
NRESNIREEEY in the jointly controlled
(45%) entity acquired (45%)
(20,884)
BERSFRN -

449,863
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BB RS
RAFEANEB T ETORIZAT ¢

(a)

e Bt & A B 1R it 2 BR 3%

RAEE  XEBRBELFM
WEBRKXERITRE YRR
KRS ZWAD R AEK
21,542,0007C (ZEZ 0 EF : B
17,369,0007T) K 7% % 8,836,000
T (ZEENF : F) o

MBE QT IEE

AEER_ZTERAF+—HAZH
HPEFYREMMAURR - B
AYImEEE QA ([FRIK
B ERRYImEn (RE) BRA
Al BRI —HREWmZ > BEE
B B AR L 51 1) P B D R BE S B
HKARE2ET  AEBREE W
FERY RSN B AR EE4,0008
TTe HRNRIIRERARANE
2R - BURE ETRAE A
B RYREBARRARRBEA
T MEBEEFHEMBRARAN
AERS - UEXRZHEHBIUK
RR-_TTAF T+ -_ANBET
ZARRARFRIBRR KRG PHUE

FTEREBASHE
TRERABME ZH BN
31
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The following transactions were carried out with related
parties during the year:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Services rendered to associates

During the year, the income from the logistics services
rendered by the Group to associates, CSG and Tianjin
CSG, amounted to HK$21,542,000 (2004:
HK$17,369,000) and HK$8,836,000 (2004: Nil)
respectively.

Capital contribution to an associate

On 2 November 2005, the Group entered into an
agreement with the other two shareholders of
Shenzhen Western Logistics, i.e. Shenzhen Investment
Holding Corporation (“SIHC”) and Shenzhen Nanyou
(Group) Holding Limited to increase the registered
capital of Shenzhen Western Logistics by contributing,
in proportion to their respective shareholdings, an
additional capital of RMB200 million in aggregate
to Shenzhen Western Logistics. As a result, the Group
had made an additional capital contribution of RMB40
million to Shenzhen Western Logistics. Since SIHC
is a substantial shareholder of the Company and is
considered as a connected person of the Company,
the capital increase constitutes a connected
transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The above transaction had been
approved by independent shareholders at a special
general meeting held on 8 December 2005.

Key management compensation

Details of key management compensation are set
out in Note 31.
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(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

42 FEBHEER
(a) W]RRES

RZBEERNF—A=-+=H" &
ARIEERKBESFBERAT (E
RETRLHAN) SN RBERE
- EELERACRERBRX
N RERBEERB RN H
AABZEERTASEEAR
600,000,000 2 BT EEEH XA

AIARE S

ZABMREFHFEATRE
——F A TMBRUATAET
A4 TR ARA 2 EB
B o AD B ERAS TS NI FREE
—MEERR  BRERAKKERN
FEYREZERMKREEKE

HES  -BEHKEX

3.95% ' B¥FHE—X ' &
BREASADR _EETNF_A=

TR FIAET -
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42 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

(a) Convertible bonds

On 23 January 2006 the Company entered into the
Subscription Agreement with J.P. Morgan Securities
Ltd. (as the Lead Manager), whereby the Lead Manager
agreed to subscribe and pay for or to procure
subscribers to subscribe and pay for the Hong Kong
dollar denominated zero coupon convertible bonds
to be issued at par by the Company in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$600,000,000.

The holders of the convertible bonds may convert
the bonds into the Company’s ordinary shares at a
conversion price of HK$0.341 per share on or before
24 February 2011. The Company intended to apply
the net proceeds for general corporate purposes,
including funding for the Company’s investments in
quality logistics infrastructure projects in the PRC.
The bonds carried a yield of 3.95% per annum and
interest is calculated on a semi-annual basis. The
bonds were issued on 24 February 2006.
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REBHREE (B
(b) RINSERESERE

RZZEZERF—ARA - FIE
LEHA‘;E/}IL}%HQH§$TEFH:}_IE\%§
FARNBRESENRNEFR - BE
KAEMNTR  2EERNBIRKR
R(BEAKE) BSEESHEEN
FEm AR AR 1D tL Bl R R Y = R A A
% A% B 82 5 48 20 252,800,000 %
BIIRTD - LA BRI S R B9 AR IR
RAEBRFAEFIE RN IERR
AR E R A ETARKG - M
SEFTEMER1D &27,260,9878%
IR (B F Y = R IR0 B2
1.25%) °

REARFZ2ENB AR BE
EXFAECRIDABERRR (53

E ) 85— I B R BCERR IR
BREABHABEALR (IREE])
RN ZE - REERREHAR

EI’JE KEAEBEZRIFERBR

122 527,260,987 I AR 15 T AR A%
% AEEKEABRTMER
B8R = 3 30. 03%3'5//|L5EHXHX

- RIBEZ 5%%%%  FTRERAX
NEERETRER K= ;%ﬁ
NEZAE - RIS EOBRED

ENESTRECEBETHK
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42 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
(continued)

(b) Shares segregation reform of Shenzhen

Expressway

On 5 January 2006, all non-listed shareholders of
Shenzhen Expressway proposed an adjusted share
segregation reform scheme. According to the proposal,
a total of 52,800,000 shares will be transferred to
Shenzhen Expressway’s A share shareholders by
all non-listed shareholders in proportion to their
respective holdings in the non-listed shares, in
exchange for the A share shareholders to agree that
all non-listed shares be converted into listed A shares.
The portion shared by the Group is 27,260,987 shares,
representing approximately 1.25% of the total number
of shares of Shenzhen Expressway.

Pursuant to the agreement entered into between
the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Xin Tong
Chan Development (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. (“Xin Tong
Chan”) and another non-listed shareholder, Shenzhen
Shen Guang Hui Highway Development Company
(“Shen Guang Hui”), Shen Guang Hui will transfer
on behalf of the Group its portion of non-listed shares
totalling 27,260,987 shares under the revised proposal
to the A share shareholders. The Group will not be
required to transfer any of its 30.03% non-listed
shares in Shenzhen Expressway. Under the agreement,
Xin Tong Chan pays only nominal consideration to
Shen Guang Hui. At the end of February 2006, the
share segregation reform scheme of Shenzhen
Expressway had been completed.

BRI B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited
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(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

42 FEBHESR (&)

(c) MREEREIENRE

—EEXRFARK AEEEHN
MAFERBRBR (BEAEE)
MEREENARBKERHERESE
ERREIERESFRER -
FEBERBRERRERBERESES
BRENEESEIERBRRMD
A MEEE 10T BARA R
WEBARREZEI LGS - B
B EFEEEARKREREBME
EEEEFRARRKNEIRA
MARRRD © Ft - AEEFEE
FEEBARRBRRERESE B H
35,826,011 & H - BRERERE
SEREEEERESDENRE @
I & B M B s AN FE 7 AR AR R
(BREAKE)ERE  WEES
EMESEARBKRRBELEY
WHEBAXKRTRAELNEESE
RESERE  @ETRZEE
EEABRBREEEFERAEN
RDED - Bt XEBHE
TRZEEEZEZARREHEEN
A[RE F R 41,894, 71501 - 1B
BEMEZRAR  AEEA
T e IR EEAR A R E AR
FRA H£AE37,720, 726 /%5 -
HEEEERRMDREL3T1% -
FlREREENEZEESHFARAA
FEFEEENRESIRAKRES

L@ e
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42 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
(continued)

(c) Share segregation reform of CSG

At the end of February 20086, the two largest CSG
non-listed share shareholders (including the Group)
proposed a share segregation reform scheme of
CSG to CSG’s A share shareholders. The CSG non-
listed share shareholders agreed, in proportion to
their respective holdings in the CSG non-listed shares,
to offer 3.55 shares for every 10 shares held by the
CSG A share shareholders in exchange for the CSG
A share shareholders to agree that all the CSG non-
listed shares be converted into listed A shares. The
Group was required to transfer 35,826,011 shares
to the CSG A share shareholders. To ensure that
CSG was able to proceed with its share segregation
reform, the two largest CSG non-listed share
shareholders (including the Group) had agreed to
contribute in advance on behalf of the CSG collective
legal person share shareholders their portion of shares
if the CSG collective legal person share shareholders
either declined to participate or had not expressly
agreed to participate in the share segregation reform
of CSG. In this regard, a possible maximum total
of 1,894,715 shares would be further contributed
by the Group in advance on behalf of those collective
legal person share shareholders. Pursuant to such
proposed scheme, the Group might be required to
transfer a maximum total of 37,720,726 shares to
the CSG A share shareholders, representing 3.71%
of the total number of shares in CSG. The above
share reform scheme is subject to the approval of
the shareholders of the Company and the CSG
shareholders in the respective shareholders’ meetings.
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FINTERFELHEFITREE
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SEEF B BEBEHEK
FRITHEZRRAAEEX
N—%Re EHESREAEE
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42 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
(continued)

The Shenzhen Municipal Government had made an
arrangement that Shenzhen State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission entered
into an agreement with the Group on 28 February
2006. As a subsidy to the Group, Shenzhen State-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission would pay, in accordance with the terms
of the agreement, to the Group an amount in cash
equivalent to the total number of shares to be
transferred by the Group to the CSG A share
shareholders under the proposed share reform scheme
of CSG multiplied by the audited net asset value
per share of CSG as at 31 December 2005. It is
expected that such cash payment will cover, to a
large extent, the decrease in assets and the loss
on disposal arising from the transfer of 37,720,726
shares in CSG by the Group.
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43 FEWBLT  BELARARE

43 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

FIER A RFE ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES
ERTEER
AL ot i AR AN [E B
MR E XS Nominal value AA TN
Place of of issued READL
incorporation/ ordinary/  Percentage of equity TEXK
NCIEE registration registered interest attributable  Principal
Name and operations share capital to the Company activities
B %
Direct Indirect
MELF
Subsidiaries
BREERAR AT BB AE1007T — 100 KREERK
Elite Capital International Hong Kong HK$100 Investment holding
Limited
HEARAF i BT — 100 REERK
Hintway Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Investment holding
MEIRERADA B 7#1%40,000,0007T — 100 REERK
Innovisions Limited Hong Kong HK$40,000,000 Investment holding
REBBRARAA B #%10,0007T — 100 REERK
Shenzhen International Hong Kong HK$10,000 Investment holding
Limited
ABERREABRAA BE A2 100 — REREBAR
Shenzhen International Hong Kong HK$2 WER%
Nominees Limited Provision of
nominees and
secretarial services
AEREXRERAT B BB — 100 WERE
Shenzhen International Hong Kong HK$2 Property investment
Properties Limited
AMEBRER th 7#%10,000,0007T — 100 KREEK
ORI BRATA PRC HK$10,000,000 Investment holding
219 CEY) th AR #140,000,0007T — 100 RE2EVEK
ARAEH PRC RMB 140,000,000 BREERS
Total Logistics Provision of total
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. #© logistics and

AN B IR B BR A 7] Shenzhen International Holdings Limited

transportation
ancillary services
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(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

43 FEMBELT C BEE AT KHFIE 43 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
FIER O RFE (B ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (continued)
ERTEER
MR of i B A< [ B
R i R Nominal value AN RIELL
Place of of issued RERSL
incorporation/ ordinary/  Percentage of equity TEX
ATER registration registered interest attributable  Principal
Name and operations share capital to the Company activities
E 4
Direct Indirect
MREELRE i AR #200,000,0007T — 100 REZK
CRIN BRAE A PRC RMB200,000,000 Investment holding
Xin Tong Chan Development

(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.##

A i R I AR #240,000,0007T — 66.67 F#E - BH LER

WRBR A PRC RMB240,000,000 B I8 2 g B R

Shenzhen South-China iR

International Logistics Development,

Co., Ltd.*® construction,
operation and
management of
South China
International
Logistics Center

REEXER & 7 %20,000,0007T — 100 KEER

CRINBRATA PRC HK$20,000,000 Investment holding

Yiwan Industry
Development
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.##
1B L s 3 E B 2 LalE AR %80,000,0007T — 100 BF% - HER
(I BR AR PRC RMB80,000,000 NEER
Development, sale and
management of
property
REEZENRAERERLR REARRES EY — 100 HEER
China Logistics British Virgin US$H1 Investment holding
Networks Limited Islands
BRREFRAT RERERRES (v — 100 ®EERK
Flywheel Investments British Virgin US$1 Investment holding
Limited Islands

43R} 2005 Annual Report
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—FFERAFF+=-H=+—H 31 December 2005
(B FlaERAS) - BT & B B IS TF T B &)

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

43 FEWBLT  BELARARE
HERBQAFE @)

43 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (continued)

ERTEER
ML A RAEE
AR EEE Nominal value RATE
Place of of issued REBDL
incorporation/ ordinary/  Percentage of equity FE#¥
AEER registration registered interest attributable Principal
Name and operations share capital to the Company activities
B &
Direct Indirect
Great Mind Holdings REBHARES (E — 100 RKERRK
Group Limited British Virgin US$1 Investment holding
Islands
New Vision Limited EERARES 100 7T 100 — ®REEK
British Virgin US$100 Investment holding
Islands
RN REEERRAA EEERRES 17T — 100 KREER
Successful Plan Assets British Virgin US$1 Investment holding
Limited Islands
RTREBRAR" EEEBRAHS EVE — 100 REEK
Topfirst Investments Limited”  British Virgin US$1 Investment holding
Islands
BEER AR EERBRES 17T — 100 KEERK
Well Guide Limited* British Virgin US$1 Investment holding
Islands
BERT
Associates
TEEREERNERAR  FH AR — 26.4 Rat HE - MIR
CSG Holding Co., Ltd. PRC 1,015,463,1247C 1R SH I E

192 )

RMB1,015,463,124
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Design, production,
processing and sale
of glass products
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—ZFFERF+=-_H=+—H 31 December 2005
(B BaERAS) - BT & B3 LB BT B &)

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

43 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (continued)

ERTEER
ML of i B A< [ B
R i R Nominal value AN RIELL
Place of of issued REBDL
incorporation/ ordinary/  Percentage of equity TEX
NEEB registration registered interest attributable Principal
Name and operations share capital to the Company activities
E 4
Direct Indirect
AYITHS B EE T F AR — 39 KEMEH
YERBER AT 20,000,0007T EFEERA
Shenzhen EDI Co., Ltd.* PRC RMB20,000,000 ES 58S
1B IE (B AR 5
Container
transportation,
EDI data exchange
business and
provision of related
value-added services
ABERERNEBRRE  RE AR — 30.03 ¥ BHR KLER
Shenzhen Expressway PRC 2,180,700,0007T ERKE R
Company Limited RMB2,180,700,000 Development,
construction,
operation and
management of toll
highways and
expressways
AYImEBYRER A R i AR — 20 W% BER K2R
Shenzhen Western 380,000,0007T ERARYRER
Logistics Co., Ltd.* PRC RMB380,000,000 Development,
construction,
operation and
management of
Western Port
Logistics District
REEBIREEBEERLARC HEH AR — 25 @Rt HECNMIRK
Tianjin CSG Architectural PRC 138,000,0007T 1S SE I B
Glass Co., Ltd.¢ RMB138,000,000 Design, production,
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—FFERAFF+=-H=+—H 31 December 2005
(B FlaERAS) - BT & B B IS TF T B &)

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

43 FEWBLT  BELARARE
HERBQAFE @)

43 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (continued)

ERTEER
ML A RAEE
AR EEE Nominal value ADRIER
Place of of issued REBDL
incorporation/ ordinary/  Percentage of equity FE#¥
AEER registration registered interest attributable Principal
Name and operations share capital to the Company activities
B %
Direct Indirect
HEZFHERAH
Jointly controlled Entities
Jade Emperor Limited HEHS 28,000,000 T — 45  RERRK
Cayman Islands US$28,000,000 Investment holding
ML B BRRAREE th 28,000,000 T — 45 RERER
ARARE A PRC US$28,000,000 SN

Hubei Magerk Expressway
Management Private
Limited #

R YN T 4355 B BER 1R 1457 ]
EETLARLAE PRC
Shenzhen Airport
International Express
Supervision Centre
Co., Ltd.*®

BEERR LRI ZERDBHARELAEE
CEBRRERNYENABRAKEBEFEEN
eMBAR BERRARAREHERAR - i
AIIEMHEAR  BELRRARZHEERDLR
ZEH BBEEREMBRIUE -

# I AE K B B A AT 75 T 2 AT K A 2 &t BT
FH A2 E MBI KR A Al#F kK o

A

FIEE

AELF

e3>

Operation and
management of
highways and

expressways
AR — 50 REHSHEER
60,000,0007T R EE R

RMB60,000,000 Provision of customs

supervision and
express cargo
handling services

The above table lists the subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities of the Group which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

# Not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers or other international member
firms of PricewaterhouseCoopers

Foreign-owned enterprise

Sino-Foreign Joint Venture

Domestic enterprise

°a >
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